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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of HD1 Securities, Ine. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finarcial
staternents including the schedules attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, in accordance
with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such intemal control as management
determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstalement,
whether dwe 1o fraud or ermor,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either imiends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
altermative but 1o do 50,

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reparting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements inclueding the schedules attached therein, and
submits the same to the stockholders or members.

M. A, Mercado & Co., CPAs and UHY M.L. Aguirre & Co. the independent auditors, appointed by the
stockholders for the periods December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively has audited the financial statements of the
Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed
ils opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit,

4/ L anes

CHIA KIM TECK £ GERRGIE CARD CHENG LIRIG PIRANO
Chairman of the Baard dent Treasurer

Signed this 12 dayof, 2022 April

Z3F Urit 23054, The Orient Square. . Ortigas Ir. Road,
Ortius Ceritre., Paigy Gty Philippines 1605
Tel,; +63 2 687 7985 1057 | +632 0106168
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
HDI Securities, Ine.

Uit 2305A, The Orient Square Building,
Francisco Ovtigas Jr. Road, Origas Center
San Antonio, Pasig City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have sudited the financial statements of HDI Securities Inc. (the Company), which comprise the
nummnrﬂurmiuapa:iﬂmunnmunbuil,mhmdﬂumﬂmwmﬂmmﬂ
ufr.hng:smmw.mdmmﬂnmﬂmmmcywﬂmuudnimdmmd:ﬂmtm
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion the financlal statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financinl position of the
Company as a1 December 31, 2021 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (FFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in Awditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant 1o our audit of the financial ststements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other
cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

ihther matter

The financial statements of the Company as of and for the year erided
another auditor whose report dated Agpril II.EMI.ﬂmuﬂY\‘ T
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SPE MAM& Co.
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Azsurance « Tax Advisory + Busingss Process

Responsipilities of Management and Those Charged with (rovernance for the Finamcial Staterents

Management is responsible for the preparstion and fair presentation of the financial statements in
sceordance with PFRS, and for such internal control a5 management determines is necessary 1o enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or emor.

In preparing the financial statements, Management i responsible for assessing the Company's ability 1o
conlinue a3 o going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, marters related 1o going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Management cither intends to liquidate the Company or o cense
operations, or has no realistic altersative bt (o do so.

These charged with governance are responsible for everseemg the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staterments

Our objectives are to obtain ressonable assurance about whether the financial ststements 45 3 whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and 10 issue an auditor’s report that incledes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of sssurance, but is not & guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordnnce with P5As will always detect o materinl misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial satements,

As part of an sudit in scoordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand
or error, design and perform aodit procedurés responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate 1o provide o basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting 3 material
migstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve
collusion, forgery, imtentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Oibain an understanding of internal contro] relevamt to the sudit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but pot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sccounting estimates
and related dischosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncenminty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability o continue &5 a going concern. IF
we conclisde thar a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our asditor’s repornt
1o ithe relaied disclosares in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our
opinion. Our concluséons are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our suditor’s report,
However, future events of conditions may cause the Company bo cease o conlinue As & going CONCem.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

w:mmmmmw:m:hmmrgedmﬂigmm garding, among oth ru'ul.'l::m,ﬂ::plmnﬁdmnpn
and timing of the audit and significant sudit SACINEE, mcludiagaity signilics

control that we idemify during our sudit, 7 ::I;-H‘_' *
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MAM & Co.

Azsurance + Tax Advisory » Business Process

Report on Other Legal and Kegulatory Requirennenis

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as &
whole. The information contained in Schedules I, I1, 111, IV, V and V1 is presented for the purpose of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but supplementary
information required by Rule 52.1-5 of the Revised Securities Regulation Code. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our andit of the financial statements and in our opinion, is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Repart on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenne Regulation 15-2019

Ohur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulation 15-2010 in Note 33 to the
financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a
tequired part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of

of HDI Securities, Inc. and has been subjecied to the auditing procedures applied in our audst
of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material
respects, in relation to the basic finnncial statements taken as a whole.

M.A. MERCAIHD & CO.

!

MARCELI®O A. MERCADO
Parmer

CPA License No, 066883
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
{With Comparative Figeres For Docember 31, 2001)
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / LOSS

{With Comparative Figures For The Year Ended December 31, 2020)

Years Ended December 31
Nafea pd 1P | 2020
COMMISSION INCOME 18,2930 18,559,664 P 32,118,000
COST OF SERVICES 19.29 (18.371,915) {22,137,766)
GROS5 PROFIT 10,187,749 098D, 243
OTHER OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME - NET  70.2¢ (3,417,226) 5634,2335
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 229 {(9,082,701) {13,711,831)
(LOSS) INCOME FROM OPERATIONS (2,312,178) 1,002,647
FINANCE INSCOME 22229 57,638 B4,325
(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX (2,254.540) 1.986,972
INCOME TAX EXPENSE M 306,129 1,593,113
NET /INCOME FOR THE YEAR 23 (5,270,669) 393,859
OTHER COMPHEHENSIVE INCOME / (LDSS)
(ther comprehensive income nof fo be reclassified
te profif or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement gain on retirement obligation 11211930 230,53 52,644
Income tax effect I (57.,633) (15,793)
172,898 36,851
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR (5,097,771} 430,710
EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER , o, __1_
Basic ooy e (0.075) _» 0.006

See Aecomparying Notes fa Finanr : WEE mn

|
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BAN A AsAR DI TR ]

-p,..n,i-i.rhu-

1, B&

m:r‘:'“t?‘ﬂr. LECTION SECTION |

Page 7



HDI SECURITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
{With Comparative Figures for the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Year Ended December 31, 2021
Retained Earnings (Defieit) Hemeasurement
Cain on
b e Unappropriated  Appropriated Retirement
(hligation
{Neses 7,200 {Notes J7.29) Nodes 17.29) Nores {727,291 Taral
Balances at January 1, 2021 r T 000000 0 (18300.264) P 14,561,370 ™ 1,283,714 P 67,543 BR0
Effect of ennciment of CREATE Law - = . 91 698 91698
Balances at January 1, 2021, as restated T0 00, 00 (1E3001,264) 14,561,370 1375472 6T63557H
Met loss for the year X (5:270,66%) - (5,270,66%)
Oher comprehensive income - - 171898 1T1E98
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (5:2T0,669) - 171898 (5,007,771
Balances at December 31, 2021 r 70000000 F (13,571,933 P i -
Year Ended December 31, 2020
Retained Earmings (Deficit) Remeasarement
Capital Stock Gain on Retirement
Unsppropriated Appropriated Obligation
{Manes [7,29) {Noses 17,28 Notey 17,290 {Woes /7,27, 28 Tl
Balances at January 1, 2020 4 70000000 *  (18770,628) P 14521984 P 1246923 P 66998279
Prior period adjustment (Note 1T) - 114,891 - 114,851
Halances af January 1, 2020, as restated 70,000, (0 (18.655.73T) 14,521,984 1,246,923 67,113,170
et income for the year = 303, 250 a . 393,859
Orher comprehensive income - - - 36,851 36,851
Total comprehensive income for the year - 193,859 - 16,851 430,710
Appropriation . (39.386) 39,386 . .
- 354473 39,386 36,851 430,710
Balances ai December 31, 2020 70,000,000 m;.un:h_m_: P 14,561,370 P 1,283,714 P 67,543 ER0
T ——— ————

See Accompanying Noter i Flnarclal Staements.
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{With Comparative Figures For The Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2020)

Years Ended December 31
Noter 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income/{Loss) before income tax (2,254,540) P 1986972
Adjustments for:
Prior peried adjustment i - (310,547)
Net unrealized gain on finacial assets at FVPL 120 (132,543 {915,233)
Deepreciation and amortization 11,.21,20.30 178,611 193,656
Provision (recovery on) for credit losses 40,2021 621,250 (1,727,734)
Retirement expense nxn M7,705 545 805
Dividend income 12029 (92,864) (139,304)
Interest income 1M (57,638) (B4,325)
Operating loss before working capital changes (1,390,019) {450,710)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 120 00 5371,030 (2,671 ,906)
Receivables from:;
Customers and brokers 4,28, 50 24,937 819 16,347,715
Clearing house 529,30 (4.203,572) (7,707 A47T)
(hers 2850 214,826 (389,589
Prepayments and other current assets §.29.30 (674,296) 24217
Oither assets 13,29 100,00 116,600
Increase (decrease) in:
Payables to:
Cusiomers and brokers 14,2030 (10,425 ,664) 14,802,103
Clearing house . - (16,049.517)
Ohers 13,28 30 6,060,454 {175, 185)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 16,29, 30 (1,688,962} 2372655
Cash generated from operations 18,312,025 6,218,906
Drividends received 5 2029 92,864 139,304
Interest recejved bl i} 57,638 H4,325
Income taxes paid 29 - {1 366,467
Net cash generated from operating activities 18,462,527 5,076,068
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property and equipment i11,21,28.30 - {159 562)
NET INCREASE IN CASH 18,462,527 4,916,506
CASH, JANUARY 1 40,325,835 15,409,329
58788362 P 403253835

EAEHI DECEMBER 31
Ser Accompmnying Nares ie Financial Statemenis.
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31,2027
{With Comparative Figures For 2020}

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

HDI Securities, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in the Philippines on May 26, 1992 and is
primarily engaged in the brokerage business of stocks, bonds and other financial securities. Application
for membership in the Philippine S1ock Exchange (PSE) was approved on January 9, 1993,

The registered office address of the Company is ot Unit 2305A 23/F, The Orient Square Building,
Francisco Ortigas Jr. Road, Ortigas Center, San Antoni o, Pasig City.

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were authorized for isue by the Board of
Directors on April 12, 2022,

CASH

This account consists of;

2021 2020
Cash on hamd r s0.000 P 50,000
Cash in banks 58,738.362 40,275,833

¥ AETRALMGEY P 40325833

Cash in bank earms interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposii rates. Inferest income is
recognized ns the interest sccrues using the effective interest rate method. Interest income carmed using
the effective interest rate method from the account amounted 1o P57658 and P 84,325 in 2021 mnd

2020 respectively (Ser Note 220,

In compliance with Revised Securitics Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2 covering customer protection
and custody of Securities, the Company muintaing a special reserve bank account for the exclusive
benefit of itz customers. Reserve requirement is determined on a monthly basis using SEC prescribed
compulation,

In compliance with Revised Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2 covering customer protection
and custody of Securities, the Company maintains a special reserve bank account for the exclusive
benefit of its customers. Reserve requirement is determined on a monthly basis using SEC prescribed
computation. Cash deposited in the specinl reserve bank sccount amounted 1o PE.278.818 and
P375,843 in year 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Company’s reserve acoount is adequate to cover ils reserve requirement.

FPage 10



HIH SECURITIES, MC

ALDITED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 11, 2021

(Wigh Comparative Figune for 2020

3, FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH FROFIT OR LOSS

21 2020
Equities in the PHISIX r ot P 4 A0
Equities outside the PHISIX 1,522 .50 B, 060,646

r 1735570 P 6,574,066

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020 rading sccurities consist of quoted equity securities. MNet unrealized
gain on trading securities amounted to P132,543 and P 915,233 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. (See
Nerte 20).

{Loss) gain on sale of financial assets at FVPL amounted to P(4,006,496) and P 2,830 689 for the vears
2021 and 2020, respectively, which are recognized in the statement of comprehentive income/(Joss).
(See Note 20)

The Company eamed dividend Income from these investments amounting 1o P92,864 and P 135,304 in
2021 and 2020 respectively (See Mode 200

4. RECEIVABLES FROM CUSTOMERS AND BROKERS

Receivables from customers and brokers at December 31 consist of:

FL ] 2020
Moty Serurily Money Secusity
Balanoe Valmatlas Aslance W ahastion
Caah and fully seoured accounts
Crnaer 150 P ODIEERTIZ O* 23S0 P 454138 P AT D63 AXY
Between J00% and 250% . . A5 45T 1,133,200
Betwecn |50 and 2004 LR 17,188 5T 157455
Berween §00% and 150%, 3,666, 555 3271142 1,069,804 1,370,300
Parly setred amcounis:
Liess dian 100R% 10,566,154 3,958,150 14,219,541 6,196,030
Unsecered sccounts 535,776 - 333,108
Elism subenption receivable ¥ ' e
F OMDERIME T LTIRTYRAD el 538 K18 FAES SHGTI
Less: Allowanoe for
aredit |osses 10,094,603 - 10,008,614 .
P INST4I4S F LTI 1 F 34513714 P 1485920671

Beceivobles from customers as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are due within one year from the
respective sintements of Minancial position dates.

The fair walues of these short-ierm financial assets were not individually determined as the carying
amous are reasonable approximation of fair valees,

Page I



HD1 SECURITIES, INC
ALUDITED FINARCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEM

BER 31, 1021
{With Compansive Figure for 2000}

Movemens of allowance for credit losses ane shivan below:
2021 2020
Balance, bnuary | r 10105604 F 11LE3RMG
Provisson fisf credin loases (Nour 21} EXILLA] . 4. T018

R::Lu}-ﬂﬂﬁm far eredil losses (Vade 21) (30967 16} 1&016.?5!;
ance, Decemiber 5| r | P 10, 105,614

With the foregoing level of allowance credit losses, management believes that the Company has
sufficient allowance to take care of any losses that the Company may incur from the non-collection or
non-realization of its receivables.

Trade receivables from margin customers have no specific credit terms but customers are required to
maintain the value of their collateral within a specific level. Once the value of the collateral falls down
this bevel, customers may either deposit additional collateral or sell stocks to cover the deficiency in
their account balance, Meanwhile, receivables from post-paid customers are required to be settled on
three (3) teading days” term.

RECEIVABLES FROM CLEARING HOUSE

Receivables from clearing house represents the net amount reccivable on the sales and purchases of
securities made on the trading floor of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Ine. with the banks and payments
must be received after three (3) days from the consummation of the transactions.

The Company's receivables from clearing house amounted (o P11,911,049 and P7.707.477 in 2021 and
2020, respectively.

Trade receivables from clearing house as at December 31, 2021, were fully collected in January 2022.
These are noninterest-bearing and are collected on three (3) trading days” term following the settlement
convention of Philippines clearing house.

RECEIVABLES FROM OTHERS

This sccount consists of

2l 2020
Dither receivehles F 1096658 F 1, B a3
Advasees 1o officers and employees 1245413 1,254,333
Dividend receivables 130,000 130,500
Allowance for credit losses - advasces | 10EE.295) (1.068.295)
Allgwane for credil lonses - others (1044,618) (411,757
Btalance, December 11 F lﬁd 58 F I.Ha‘i‘ﬂ

The Company’s recelvables from others are remained unliquidated as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Page 12



HIH SECURITIES, INC
AUDHTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

{With Compasssive Figure for 2000)

7. CURRENT TAX ASSET

This account consists of:

pird | 20040
Creditatile withholding F 560573 F 5107836
Prepaid MCIT - 211564 425,649

r 5.!!1&1 r ﬁeJ!i-llj

As at December 31, 2021 an adjustment of P212.824 was made due 1o the effect of change of rate in
the enactment of CREATE Law reducing the rate of Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) from
%% o 1% based on the gross profit of the entity for the year 2020,

Dictails of MCIT are as follows:

2021 20240
Beginning balance r 425649 TI6, 1946
Adjustments {‘2!!&-‘] .
Total 212 825 Ti6,106
Expired {%5,761) (310,347
MCIT-deferred for the year 1 2 -

r 121,564 r 423,64

Az of December 31, 2021, the Companys MCIT that can be corried forward on future income tax.

Year Expiry Feteitie Appliedto Broked Unapplied
Incurred Drate Current Year
2008 2021 r 95,763 = 05,763 =
2009 2022 117062 = = 117062
2021 2026 105,502 - x 105,502
2 318,327 - P 95763 P 2R354

As of December 31, 2020, the Company”s MCIT that can be carried forward on Future income tax.

Yeur Expiry Applied o -

S, i Amount Bl ek Expired Unapplied
2017 2020 - - F 310,547 =
2018 2021 P 190,526 = - P 191,526
2019 2022 134,123 - = 234,121

[ 425,649 - P 0547 P mlm

8. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This account is consist of prepaid insurance, prepaid supplies, prepaid taxes and licenses and others
current assets amounting to P490,107 and P 444,430 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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HEM SECURITIES, BHC

AUDITED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMEER 31, 3021

(With Comparative I‘qn foar 2020)

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVOCI

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020 financial asset a1 FVOOCI includes unquoted proprictary
investment measured ot cost in Fairways and Bluewaters Resort Golf and Country Club, Inc. This
invesimient is valued ot P 198,975,

b,

TRADING RIGHTS

Under the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) rules, all exchange membership seats are pledped at its fill
value to the P5SE to secure the payment of all debes dese to other members of the exchange arising out of
or in conpection with the present or fulure member's confracts. The [stest selling price of ihe
membership siock exchange seat, as provided by the P5E amounts to P B.500 million as of December
31, 2021 wnad 2020,

Im 2001, the demutunlization or conversion of PSE into & stock corporaticn was approved by the
Securitics and Exchange Commission (SEC) effective August B, 2001, Esch membership seat will be
exchanged for shares of stock of PSE. In sccordance with the conversion, PSE will issue 9.2 million
shares with a par valwe of ¥ | per share out of the members” contribution of ® 286.6 million. Thus, each
of the 184 membersbrokers will subscribe to & 1otal of 50,000 shares of stocks with a par valee of P1
per share. The balance of members’ contribution of P 277.4 million will be treated as additional paid-in
surplus in the financial statements of PSE.

In addition to the shares, each member will receive a Cenificate of Trading Right 1o maintain their
continued sccess to the trading floor of PSE. The Right can be assigned and transferred by the
miembers,

PSE, however, will not issue shares of stocks for the value of its donated assets, The donated mssets
consisting of two (2) pieces of real propenty located in Makati and Pasig City, where its trading floors
are located, are subject o restrictions on their transferability.

The effects of the conversion plan specifically on the separnie valustion of the ownership of the
excharige seal and the trading righrs have been recognized in the Company 's financial stabeenents.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying value of the trading rights amounted to P8,500,000.

2021 2020
Cost P 10,000,000 P 10,000,000
Allowance for impairment 1,500,000 1,500,000
Masket value P 8,500,000 P 2,500,000

The impairment loss amounting to P 1,500,000 was taken 1o profit or loss net of related deferred tax
lisbilities amounting to P 375,000 (See Note 12).
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11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Movements in the property and equipment accownt in 2021 follow:

Campeies Furnibwrs,
Tramaportatisn Seflaare anl Fileiunp pned Ledschnld
Equli ] “IEE & E#E i i ety Takal
Toatz
Fabances of chay
beginnieg of year r AT AM0EL) T earEaT F GARLI9T T M RaE
Maksnee o wnd of yrsr 3IT6.T6T LT 9l 1, ENT B AES, 190 3 ME 48
Adiumslised depreeiation
arid o oo L o
Halancos af dhe
terginning of yrar HLLTT AT TAT 3,343 i LI 3,112,088
Dt latian - 43,081 126512 NN ITRELN
Dudaatisns {GA00 8T} = = = {00, 47E)
Dalamsy i cnd o year AT 4283948 D 4A0.TEL &-‘“ w
Ml Book valer r - r I&655 F 17800 P LEm r 30,155
— ———aae — s

Movements in the property and equipment account in 2020 folkow;

Comipratcn Fumitwe,
TranLEHTATN Softwars mad Finsanes afd Leaseboid
. .
T
Balances al the
beginning of year FOIRIT MY P A0 F FAELIS P AMANTZ P D
Adeitons - - w = R
Balance st md of yeas 10, 177,343 4 500,500 647,887 1,184,152 3O_HE 0
Mzerinililed deprecailion
i MmOtz
Balances ai the
Eeginpng of yesr 18,177,343 4,191,674 Lot ] 6,351,734 29,928,800
PP ; 2113 AL IS 028 193,656
Balance ot o of yeas 18,1 77,343 4340, 7K 0, 265 1§, 1600 2 3, IIL0E
Hept ook valus r . r WAls F 261 P I3 r 185 967
_— —

The total cost of fully depreciated property and equipment which are still in use amounted 1o
P1E435936 and P 27,963,992 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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{'Wish Comparative Figure for 2020)
12. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - NET
This account consists oft
il 2020
Dedierred mmx assets:
NOLCD 4 Sl450E P 2T1I53
Provision for credit losses 172922 3,031,685
Unrealized loss on Mnancind assets of FYPL - net 115,630 { TR0, 3540}
Retirement obligation 1367 K62 1,537,113
Imnpadriment loss - Trading rights ATS 50,001
Deferned tax labilicy:
Remensurement gain o reliremeni obligation (CRCT) (516,113 550,158

r 19,796 P 7,003,273

The movements in the deferred income tax account are summarized as follow;

LUnrenkeed e

pifmmal ol isperesilse  Rarmem  pabaie

Remianpim el

el a L ehbey Thlgkgs digtn whmm @O e
' cHiplis
fiete 1 e i) fhloee 18 o2l eimdid)  Reiedi)
At oy L2600 ORI P GAnl P DO P ISR P BN P LISMI P TSN
Charge 1o preli o1 ko haf L] LR ] LHELF (2, e
Riein o reloement obisjar oo
e 5o emplovee ol . {1E2.33E) (IEL330
Charped o ather ; :
] - : - LR : EEL
i Diocreshes 51, 36785 Boo(GI P DML B LWE0d P LSED P PSR P 1M P TN
(b b profil or o T LR (14,000 {68 360 1125 (2,707,540
Chaspedbo by
saEpidiRin e BitEE . (LA T (57 855)
Tharped I shamgn & gl = - 5,050 i
At Brcemier 1, 3800 LT VYV N VO T T I
13. OTHER ASSETS
This sccount consists of
2021 2020
Deposits-rentals and utilivies FoLSM008 ¢ 2004400
Investment deposit 125,000 125,000
Telephone deposit-FLDT 16,500 16,800
Broker's slier 100400 10,000
r r 2.1 {0
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[y Comnparalive Figure Tor 2000
14. PAYABLE TO CUSTOMERS AND BRODKERS
This account consists of:
201 T2
Money Security Money Sscurity
Balance Yalustion Balince VWahaation
With money balances r OMARLATE T LGS ER084% FOsEM0 P oA4ITEIELLG
With no money balances - 4,635,400,561 - 2,247.057.843
rOSEITE P O I81.2E1 410 P49 R06040 P MHEH.‘?H
15 PAYABLE TO OTHERS

This account consists of payablés 10 non-¢ustomers and unréleased checks to clients as of December
31, 2021 and 2020 amounting o P17,069.023 and P 11,008,569, respectively,

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

This acoouni consisls of:

201 a2
Aconsd commEdion r ¥aler P 1,756.731
Aconued experndes 418,166 670 k66
WAT parable 05,73 160,107
Sales tax payable 287,587 340,593
Payable 1o HIR 163,271 264,393
Orhers 136,638 106,367
T 121060 P 3BR99.6M

Accrued expenses and other labilitics- others include 555 loan payvable, 555 premium payabls, HDMF
foan payable, Philbealth boan payable, HDMF fund payable and iransfer fee payable.
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17. EQUITY

Capital stock

Shares Aot
2021 20 2021 200

Common stock « par value

Authorized 200,000,000 200,000,000 P 200,000,000 P 200,000,000

Issued and ouistanding

Balance ai beginning of vear T 00, 0D 0000000 T 70000000 P 70,006 000
Issuance of additional capital

stock - - -

Issuance of capital stock from

sock subscription

Balance at the end of year 7 70, (e r o 70,000,000

The Company has authorized capital stock of P 200,000,000 s of December 31, 2021 and 2020. Out
of the authorized capital stock, 70,000,000 common stock were issued and outstanding ot P1 par value
per share in 2021 and 2020,

The Company has two (2) stockholders each owning 100 or more shares of the Company’s capital
stock as a1 the date of Gnancial position,

Holders of these shares are entitled to dividends as declared and are entitled 1o vote one per share af
general meetings of the Company'.

b. Retained carnings

Unappropriated
This account consists of:

L] 2020
Beginning balance F (18300264 F (18,7700628)
Prior pericd adjusimend - 114,80
Mt (loss) income For the year (5.270,669) 303,559
Appropristion : L

P (23571933 P (18.300.264)

Prior period adjustment is due 1o the expiry of the Minimum Corporate Incoms Taxes for the year
2020,

Appropriated for reserve fund

In December, 2000, the SEC passed the implementing Rules and Regulations of the new Securities
Regulation Code (SRC) effective January 2, 2001, significant provisions of the SRC include
guidelines on the segregation of broker and dealer functions within a brokerage fiom and
maintenance of a required minimum paid up capital of P109 million, except for non-exchange
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(With Comparntive Figare for 2000)

member who deal only with proprietary shares, which should have a minimum capital of P35
mdllion.

Under Revised Securities Regulation Code No.49.1 (B), Reserve Fund of such circular requires
that every broker dealer shall annually sppropriate a certain minimum percentage of its audited
profit after tax and transfer the same to Appropristed Retained Eamings.

Minimum appropriation shall be 30%, 20% and 10% of profit afier tax for broker dealers with
unimpaired paid up capital between P10.0 million 1o P30.0 million, between P30.0 million to
P50.0 million and more than P50.0 million respectively. In 2021, no appropriations of retained
camings was made for the Company incurred losses after tax amounting to P{5,270,669). In 2020
an appropriation of retained camings amounting to P30,386 was made for the Company incurred
an ingome after tax amounting P393,859, As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the appropriated
retained camings amounted to P14.561 370,

i  Remeasurement goin on retirement, net of tax

This sccount consists of accumulated actuarial gains or losses on retirement obligations as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to P1,548,370 and P 1,283,774 respectively.

Prior period adfesimenti
In 2020, prior period adjustments pertain to the expiration of prepaid MCIT and the release of
retirement obligation due 10 employee transfer.

The Company recorded the adjustments by decreasing Prepaid Taxes-MCIT by an amount of
P310,547, and by decreasing Retirement Liability and Deferred tax liability on retirement
obligation by P67, 769 and P182,331, respectively. The net effect of these adjustments resulted 1o
a decrease in Unappropriated Retained Earning amounting to P114,891.

18, COMMISSION INCOME

This aceount consists of:

2021 2000
Commisgion Income r ﬂﬁ F 321 Illllllll'n‘l|
19. COST OF SERVICES
This account consists of
2021 20
Cormmissions L 123N P 14,834,197
Salaries and employee benefits 405770 6,176,477
Stock exchangs dues and fees 1 A3 RIE TE 801

rF IS F HIEJ'J'.TE-E-
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMEER 31, Dk

(With Cempantive FF i 2000
0. OTHER OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) - NET
This account consists of

2l 030
Mt umrealized gain on sile of Anancial ds o FVPL (Nore 3) 131543 P qREI1
[Ldﬂ”ﬂ'nﬁﬂiﬂtﬂlh.ndimﬂllFmr?ﬁﬂj} (4.0, 45 ) LEH AR
Recovery on credit basses - 1.72T.TH
Dividend income (Nobe 1) YA 139, 14
Unreafized foeeign exchange gaingloss) 1,380 (1, 364)
Others® I 405 23,630

r BA17,126) P 5,634,218

Others represent Company s handling fee of the customers’ stock certificates. Dividend income is cash
dividend declared on the Company's financial assets at FVPL,

1. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consisis of

2021 2020
Hentals (Woves 27 amd 28] F 179 B 1515838
Salaries, wages and cther henefits 1,739,017 2.649,06]
Profssonal Focs 113595 170667
Provigion fior credil keses (Moker F g 6] &l 250 .
Cmmrsncal o b DN T23,495
Represental ion 325878 149,068
Comdompum dues 47842 438,037
Transportaticn and irevel 4E4.508 Bone
Ty and hewsaes I AR 393,741
Retiramenl expense (Now 27) MHI10E 55,805
Ceprociaiion md amont ietion [Aoer 1] 178411 193,656
Simionery mnd supplics 118,799 16,303
Insaarance 51977 14118
Hepairs and mamicnance = 13073
Saboniptions and perindicals . 198,636
Tminings end seminars - 4327
Iank charps . 19,700
N el lpmdoass T 771 I A365T

[ 9082701 ® 1171183

Miscellapeous expemses include expenses of personnel like meals, medicines, janitorial and sanitary
supplies, call cards and other basic allowances incurred by employees.

Poge 20



HI SECLRITIES, [N

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

{Wish Comparstive Figure for 20210)

IL

FINANCE INCOME

This account consists of;

[everest imcome (Nore 7} 57438 P 34,325

13,

COMMITMENTS

Leases
The Company has a twelve-month lease agreement with Hilleroft Phils,, Inc, for its office space that is

being used for administrative and operational purposes. Rental expense for the years ended Diecember
31, 2021 and 2020 emounted to P1,765 4% and P 1,681 428, respectively.

The Company has lease agreement with a third party for lease of parking slots a the Lameo Paper
Products Co,, for 2020, Rental expense amounted 1o PG2,400,

(nher rental expense for 2021 and 2020 pertains to rental agreement with Philippine Stock Exchange
amounting 1o P12,000 and P72,000, respectively.

4,

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense consists of the following:

021 2020
Current
Corporate inoome tax i ME58T P 3,963
Deferred 1,707,543 629,148
Provision for income tax
wmlhe prafit o lowa F 1016129 P 1,593,113
Income tax expense reported in OCT is as follow:
1 2020

Hmsurmtnlﬂ on retirement Dh&llhl‘l. (Nae 27} T STH3Y P 1
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The deferred portion as shown in the income tax expense reported in the profit or kess consists of the
filbowing:

2021 2020
Dheferred

Retirement expense o (B6 026y P {163,742)
Unrealized fair value loss/\{gain) on FVPL (265,955) 374,570
NOLCO for the year (B1,505) -
Expired NOLCO 1,529,936 :
Provision for credit losses 353481 518320
Effect of change in tax rate from 30% to 23% 1,258,910 -

r LMY ¥ 629,148

A reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate to the actual income
tnx reflected in the statements of profit of loss and other comprehensive income &t December 31 is &5
fallows:

02 2000

Ineceme tax at stanatory e of 25%, 0% r (563,635 P 596,001
Deduct reconciling item

Mon-deductible expenses 496,741 1,022,320

Expired NOLOD 1,529,934 -

Income subhpect 1o fimal tax (14410 (25,298)

Net of MCIT for the vear o0&, 587 -

Effect of change in tax rate 1,158,910 :

r EIEIH o ]Imllﬁ

As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s NOLCO that can be claimed as deduction agninst future
tacable income is s follows:

Yeur neurred Expiry date WOLOO Tax raie  Deferred tax aswel
018 2021 2 6119745 0% P 1,835.924
2009 EUH lt?y'iﬂi 0% Erelig

MNOLCO 2020 9,050,143 rF 2.705,43
Effect of change in

inCome nx mic - (452,507}
0,050,143 2,262,516
NOLCO:
202 2024 127620 81,903
9377, 763 2585 2344441
Expired NOLCO
Eﬂs 2021 (6, 119.745) _ {1,529.916)
MOLCD 2621 ERLETTE] F Elﬁ

Under Republic Act No. 9337 - Income tax amendments, the corporate income tax rate applicable from
January | 1o October 31, 2005 of 32% in 2005 was increased to 35% cffective November 1, 2005,
decreasing 1o 30% effective on January 1, 2009, Because of the change in the corporte income tax
rate, the allowable deduction for interest expense in Section 34(B)(1) is reduced by 42% (from 38%) of
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inferest income subject to final tax and 33% (from 42%:) upon th ¢ effectivity of the 30% corporate tax
rale an January 1, 2009,

Revenue Regulation Mo, 10-2002 defines expenses to be classified as entemainment, amusement and
recreation (EAR) expenses and sets a limit for the amount that is deductible for tax purposes, at 1% of
met revenues for sellers of services.

On September 30, 2020, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations No. 25-2020 implementing
Section 4 (bbbb) of “Bayanihan o Recover As One Act™which states that the NOLCO incurred
for mxable vears 2020 and 2021 can be carried over and claimed as a deduction from gross
income for the next five (5) consecutive faxable years immediately following the year of such
loss.

Enactment of “Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises™ of “CREATE" Act

On February 1, 2021, the Bicameral Conference Commimes, under the 18th Congress of the

Fiilippin:s. approved the reconciled version of the House Bill Mo, 4157 and Senate Bill No. 1357 (the

CREATE bill). The CREATE bill seeks to reform corporate income taxes and incentives in the country

h}r implementing certain changes 1o the current tax regulations, These changes inglude;
Reduction in the RCIT from 30% 1o 20% for domestic corporations with net taxable income not
exceeding P50 million and with total assets not exceeding P100.0 million excluding the valae of
lafid on which the particular business eatity's office, plant and equipment are sitwated;

= Redustion in the RCIT from 30% to 25% for all other comporations;

*  Lowerng of MCIT fram 2% to 1% of gross income for 3 years;

*  Instead of 10% of taxable income, application of RCIT on regional opersting hesdquanters;

*  Standardization of final taxes on foreign corporations o 15%;

+  Exemption of foreign sourced dividends received by domestic corporation subject fo ceriain

conditions;

¢ Additional deduction of one-half {172} of the value of labor training expenses subject o cerain
conditions;

*  Repeal of the 10% improperly accumulated carmings tax (JAET);

*  WAT exemption for medicines for certain critical ilinesses; and

»  YVAT-free imporation and sale for 3 years of COVID-19 medicines, personal protective equipment
and materials used for their production,

Under the bill, the above changes will be implemented for periods beginning July 1, 2020, On February
24, 2021, the final version of the CREATE bill as passed by the Bicameral Conference Commiltee was
transmitted to the Office of the President for signing or approval ints law. On March 26, 2021, the
(Mfice of the President approved the CREATE Bill and will subsequently be called Republic Act Mo.
115 or CREATE Act. The CREATE Act will become effective on April 11, 2021 or 15 days after
complete publication in the Official Gazete or any newspaper of general circulation in the Philippines.

i5

INCOME (LOSS5) PER SHARE

The compulation of basie loss per share is computed as follows:

2021 2030

et {koss) inconse P (SI0668) P 93,450
Divided by outstanding shares 70,6000 70,000,000
r 0075 P 0.006

The Company kas no potential common shares, therefore the computation and amounts reporied for
basic and dilutive (loss) income per share were the same,
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26, RELATED FPARTY TRANSACTIONS

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirecily through one or mare intermiediaries, control, or are
controdled by, or are under commen control with the Company, inzluding holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries are related entities of the Compary.

K.ey management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the
family of these individuals and companies associated with thess individuals, also constitute related entitics.

Transactions between related parties are accounied for on the same terms a5 with other individuals and
businesses of comparable risk. In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed
1o the substance of the relaticnship, and not merely the legal form.

Significant transactions carried out with related parties follow:

a  Cowmrizsian fncame

There are no commission income from securities transactions for 2021 and 2020,

b Cutstanding Accounis in Securitles Transactions

There are no cutstanding acoounts related 1o the transaction that were included as part of Payable 1o
Customers in the statements of financial positions for 2021 and 2020, respectively.

£ Cuistandieg Accounis in Non-Trode Advances

Mon-interest-bearing advances o employees, shareholders and other related parties amounted 1o
PI77,118 and P 186,238 for 2021 and 2020, respectively. There have been no guarantees provided for
any related party receivables, For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has not
recorded any impairment of receivables relnting 1o amount owed by related parties.

d  Compensarion of Key Marggement Persovmel

The Company considered as key management personnel all employees holding managerial positions up
b the President. Key management personnel compensation amounied 1o F2,93 1,400 and
P 2,948,720 for 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Retirement obligation that relates 10 key management personnel is considersd a related party. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 the retirement obligation atributed to key management personnel
amiounied 1o F249.519 and P352,689, respectively.

The Company entered into & contract of lease of an office space with Hilleroft Phils,, Inc. The rent
expense amounted 1o P1,765.499 and P1,681,428 for the years 2021 and 2020,

Transactions for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 220

Transctions for e years oded | Chtstanding baianees i of
Desember 31 Degember 1

Mature ol
Felaied Party  Trasustion Teama el 2020 el pianil]

Officerr and  Noneintersst  Unseourod, willl besetiied  © w12m P (109755 ¢ 1T T O1BS23R

erplaTees bewring i il i iEpared,
advarces jpayabie on demansd
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Transmctiorn b e years ervded
Deeembear 31
Madure of
ﬂ;_u:d Pty Tramsaction Teom Condition piH | i
Compamics with covemon i ern. =
dvesters dind Aot badder
Filicrolt Paib, s Feninl Pxpensy  Achomncod post dabed chocks for - Socumd; with dhios F LT P SR AE
thie whsole Soraion of [he (5] rmths achvmnce
coniract were ool [RAITRTE el deposs

ot paaraaiood

F LITTAW P 1ESLA

Terms and conditions of transactions with refaed parties

»  Outstanding advances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash,
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has not recorded any impairment
of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which
the related party operaies,

» Management fees are seitled in cash every 2 day of the month. Other related transactions that are
included in the expenses of the Company are payable upon receipt of billing, in cash.

The Company is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party tmnsactions
provided under RE Mo, 34-2020.

17. RETIREMENT DBLIGATION

The Company has a non-funded non-contributory defined bemefit plan covering all its officers and
reguler employees. The benefits are based on 2 percentage equal 10 one hundred percent (100%) of
latest monthly salary for every year of credited service. The plan provides retirement, separation, death
and disability bemefits to s membeérs,

The following tables summarize the components of net retirement benefits cost recognized in the
statements comprehensive income and the amounts recognized in the statements of financial position.
The costs of defined benefit retirement plans, as well as the present value of the benefit obligations are
determined using actuasial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions,
The last actuarial valsation report was issued on March 21, 2022,
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The principal assumptions used in determining pensions for the Company were a5 follows:

2021 2020
Diiscount rake 511% 4.18%
Salary increase rate 7.00% 7.00%%
Mortality rate 2017 PICM 2017 PICM
Crisability rate 1252 Drisability 1952 Disability
Study period 2,  Study period 2,
Benefit 5 Benefit 5
Tumover rate A scale rnging A scale mnging
from | ™oniage  from | 7% of age
18 decreasing to 18 decreasing to
0% at age 60 0% at mpe 60
The movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation |s summarized as follow:
201 2020
Defined benefil obligation, lanusey | r 380781 3404 389
Crmrent service cost 26T AT 436074
Imicres! cost k0316 108 831
Actoarial (pain} loss
Changes in fmancial sssumplions (198,23T) Ll 04
Experience adjustnsents (32,194) (214, 248)
Demographbe sssumpibons & £
Released obligation due to employee iransfer . {607.769)
Defived benefit ﬂiﬁmhm, December 31 r JA06,955 P 3289781
Liability / (Asset) 1o be recognized in the staement of financial position:
P 20120
Tefined benedlt obllgation. December 11 T IG5 P 5280781
Defined benefit cost recognized in the profit or loss:
1621 2020
Bervice o | wram r 436,974
Mgl imterest cosl E0,336 10E831
D fined benefil cost in profil ar loss r MH0s PF 45,805
Movement in net defined benefin cost recognized in other comprehensive income:
L] J0M
Tt mmount recognined in OCL begirming r 1833062 ¢ I.TEL M8
Amount recognired durisg the year 230,531 S1
Net amount fecognired in OCL ending P sy P | £33, 961

Amounts shown in the statements of changes in equity were net of income tax effect on actaarial gain
Total sceumulated actuarial gaing on employees benefit obligation amounted o P1 S48 370 and

P 1283,774 and for 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Page M



HIH SECURITIES, INC

AUMMTED FENANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

{'Wish Compagative Figure for 20201)

Movement in net liability is summarized below,

2021 2020
Beginning lisbility P JIEOTHL P 3404380
Defined beneli cost-profit or boss MT,T0E 545,805
Defined benefit costother comprehensive income (130,531) (52,644
Relcased liahility due 1o emplayee transfers - {607.769)
E]nﬂ'ﬁnll Iilhili! r 3&?‘5 F 3.189.781
History of unfunded obligation:

2021 020
Defined benefit cbligation, ending r JAee 958 P 1,289,781
Fair value of plan asiets, ending - -
Unfunded ohlagation r EE L] P 1,289,781

The Company does not maintain & fund for its employee defined benefit obligation. While funding is
not & requirement by the law, there is o risk that the Company may not have the cash if several
employees retire within the sams year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is as follow:

Years

Fimancial year
021 1686

Each sensitivity analysis on the significam sctuarial assumptions was prepared by remeasuring the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date after first adjusting one of the current assumptions
according to the applicable semsitivity increment or decrement (based on changes in the relevant
assumption that were reasonably possible at the valuation date) while all the other assumptions
remained unchanged. The corresponding change in the defined benefit obligation was expressed as o
percentage change from the base defined benefit obligation.

Expected future retirement expense — charged to profit or loss.

[Expected Contribution in Mast Financisl Year r LE9T.E11
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The defined benefit obligation is subject w several key assumptions. To help illustrate the impact of
each key assumption, provided below i3 a sensitivity analysis which has been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of cach significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of end
of the reporting period, assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Sensitivity Analysis of the DBO to Changes in Assemption

pL A1 | 2000
Diseount rate 6235 (Acmalel00%) ® 3250087 5.18% (Aciual + 1L00%) P 3,024,246
5.23% (Actual) FA06.953 41 (Actual) 3289781
A23% (Actaal - | 08%) 3,594,753 3. 08% (Actual - 100} 30 500
Salary increase raie Bb0% (Actusl + LM%) P 3597468 B0 (Acnml + LODW) P 3490533
7% (Actusl) 1,406,955 T.00% (Actual) 3,235,781
E00% (Actual- LO0%] 3245673 6.00% { Actual - 100%) 3,120,465

8

CONTINGENCIES

Asg of Decernber 31, 2021 and 2020, there are po pending litigations brought by or egainst the Company.

9.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The more significant accounting policies and practices of the Company are summasized below to
facilitnte the understanding of daia presented in the financial statements.

Basis ol Preparation

Thiese financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFR5). The term FFRS includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards
{PAS) and interpretation, which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standands Council
(FRSC) and adopted by the Securitics and Exchange Commission (SEC), including SEC
PrONoUNSEMEnts.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for financial assets at
FVPL and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) that have been
measured at fair valse. The Company's financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, which is
the functional and presentation currency under PFRS. All values are rounded 1o the nearest peso except
&s otherwise indicated,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounfing estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Company's sccounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where aszumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Nowe
ELS
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Statement of Compliance

The financial sintements of the Company kave been prepared in compliance with the PFRS except for
the use of closing prices for the valuation of equity securities as required by Revised SRC. PFRS
requires the use of exit prices for the valuation of equity securities of the Company.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. An aszet i% current when if is!

Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at
l=ast twelve months after the repoming period

Al cther assets are classified as noa-current.

A liability is current whens

¢ Itis expecied to be seiiled in normal operating cycle

= Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

s [t is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

#  There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for st least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifics all other liabilities as non-curment,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Enir Valuc Measyrement
The Company measures financial instruments ai fair value al esch financial position date.

Falr value ks the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to wransfer a Hability in an orderly
transaction betweoen market participanis ot the measurement date, The fuir value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction (0 sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

#  Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
*  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value
of an asset of & liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, sssuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

The fair value measurement of & non-financial asset tkes into ncoownt & market participant’s ability to
generate ecopomic benefits by using the assets in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best usc.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assers and liabilivies for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial satements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
impui that is significant io the fair valuc measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
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Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {that is,

unobservable inputs)

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements ot fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in hicranchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value
measurerment as a whale) at the end of each reporiing period.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those previcus financial year, except for the
adoption of the following new standards effective January 1, 2021. The Company has not early adopted
any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not effective.

Unless otherwise indicated, adoption of this new standards did mot have an impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

I G M b Leaser Covid-1 9 Belmied Mol L oReessioi

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying FFRS 16 guidance on lease modification
accounting for reni concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a
practical expedient, a lessee may elect not 1o assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a
lessor is a lease modification, A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease
payments resulting from the Covid=-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the
change under PFRS 16, if the change were not a lease modification.

The rent concedglon iz & dirsct consequence of COVID-EY,
The change in lease payment results in revised leased consideration that is substantially the
same 05, or less than, the lease consideration immedintely preceding the changs;

»  Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30,
2022; and

#  There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease,

A lessee that applics this practical expedient will account for any change in lease payments resulting
from the COVID-19 relofed rent concession in the same way it would account for a change that is not a
lease modification, i.., a5 » variable lease payment,

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after Aprl 1, 2021,
Early adoption is permitted.

These amendments are not applicable and have no significant impact on the Company’s financial
performance and financial position.

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an
interbank offered rate (TBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rte (RFR). The
amendments include the following practical expediems:

* A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly

required by the reform, 1o be treated as changes 1o o floating interest rate, equivalent to a
movement in a market rafe of inerest
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« Permit changes required by IBOR reform 10 be made o hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued

« Provide temporary relief 1o entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a bedge of 2 risk component.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2021 and
apply retrospectively. The amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Standard ssued but not vet Effective

Propouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below, Unless otherwise indicated, the Company
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncement will liave a significant impact on s
financial statements. The Company Intends to adopt the following pronouncement when they become
eifective,

s ERmEnEs b A h Ao L L

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment,
any proceeds from seiling ftems produced while bringing that asset 1o the location and condition
necessary for it 1o be capable of opersting in the manner intended by management. Instead, &n entily
recognizes the procesds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in profit or

loss,

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and must
be applied retrospectively 1o items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applics the smendment.

The amendments are nol expected to have 3 material impact on the Company.,
i LAy UMY — af AR a L andrag

“Hdtmqmim:immnmmmi

AT ETILITRE LY 15 n

The amendments speci
onerows o loss-making.
The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach™, The cosis that relate directly 10 o contret 1o
provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related 1o

contract activities. General and administrutive costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless there are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are not expected 1o have n material impact on the Company

¥
AT RETRHE] 1L

The amendments to PFRS 3 Business Combination = Reference to the Conceptual Framework, The
amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Siatements, isseed in 1989, with a reference 1o the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 withowt significantly changing its requirements,

The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of PFRS 3 to avoid the tssue of
potential *day 2 gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of PAS 37 or IFRIC Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in PFRS 3 for contingent asscts that
would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on of after | January 2022 and
apply prospectively.

These amendments are not applicable and will have no significant impact on the Company.
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s g firsi-time adopter

Annual improvements 10 PFRS standards process, the amendment to PFRS 1 Firss Adoption of
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. The amendments permit a subsidiary that clects 1o apply
paragraph D16 (a) of PRFS 1 1o measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported
by the parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an
associate or joint venture that elects 1o apply paragraph D16 {a) of PFRS 1.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting period beginning on or afier | January 2022 with
earlier adoption permined.

These amendments are not applicable and will have no significant impast on the Company.

fingncigl liabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to PFRS. The amendment clarifies the fiees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the werms of & new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial lability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the bomower and the lender, including fees pald or received by either bomower or lender on
the other's behalf An entity applies the smendment to financinl liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning on the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under PAS 12, o that it no
longer applies 1o transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments also clarify that where payments that settle a liability are deductible for tax purpose, it
is a matier of judgement (having considered the applicable 1ax faw) whether such deductions arc
pitributable for tax purposes to the linbility recognized in financial statements (and interest expensesd
ar i the related assel compoenent (and interest expenses),

An entity applies the amendmenis o transactions that occur on or after January 1, 2023 with earlier
adoption permditted.

The amendments are not expected o have material impact on the Company.

Amendmenis o s nd PAS B, Oefimition of Materich

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors, Also, they clarify how entities wse measurement
techniques and inputs to develop sccounting estimates.

These amendments are effective for anmesl reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and
apply 1o changes in accounting policies and accounting estimales that oocur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on

the Company,

The amendments provide guidance and examples 1o help entities apply materiality judgements to
sccounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy
disclosures that ane more useful by:

Page 12



HDI SECURITIES, M.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMEER 31, W2

With Compeanstive Figure for 2000)

»  Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their 'significant” accounting policies with a
requirement o disclose their *material” accounting policics and

»  Adding guidance on how entitics apply the concept of materiality in making decisions abowt
accounting policy dischosures

The amendments o Practice Statement provide non-mandatory guidance. Meanwhile, the amendments
o PAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, Early application is
permitted as long as this fact is disclosed.

The amendments are not expected w0 hove a material impact on the Company.

Th: m:ndmmn lu pm*mr:ph -ﬁ? m '.rﬁ nf FA.S Ilu Epﬂ:llj-' 1h= mqun':m:rm far classifying liabilities
15 current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

What is meant by a right to defer settlerment

That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting peried

That classification is unaffected by the likelibood that an entity will exercise its deferral right
That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is fself sn equity instrument
would the termis of a linbility not impact its classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
must be applied retrospectively. However, in November 2021, the International Accounting Standard
Board (LASE) tentatively decided 1o defer the effective date 1o no eardier than Janusary 1, 2024,

This amendments are not expecied o have material impact on the Company,

The mnndmm tc— PFRS I'.lI Irrmm:r: Cmm.t, & comprehensive new accoumting standard for
ingiraoe CORTACS COVETing recognition and measurement, presentation and disclozure, Once effective,
PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (PFRS 4) that was lssued in 2005, FFRS 17 applics
to all ypes of insurance contracts {i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardiess of
the type of entities that issue them, as well as to cenain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is 1o provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast 1o the requirements in PFRS 4, which are largely
based on grandfathering previous local mccounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model
for insurance contracts, covering all relevant acoounting aspects, The core of PFRS 17 is the general
madiel, supplemented by:

% A specific adaptation for comtracts with direct participation festures (the variable fee

approach)
» A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.,

On December 15, 2021, the FRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS from January |,
2023 o January 1, 2025, This is consistent with Circular Letter Mo, 2020-62 issued by the Insurance
Comemission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by two (2) years afler jis effective date as
decided by the 1ASE.
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PFRS 17 is effective for reporting perieds beginning on or afier | January 2025, with comparative
figures required. Early application is permitted provided the entity also applics PFRS @ and PFRS 15
on or before the date it first applies PFRS 17,

These amendmenis are not applicable and have no significant impact on the Company’s financial
performance and financial position.

Deferred effectivity

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 8 in dealing with the loss of control
of & subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associafe or joint venture. The amendments clarify that
the full gain or loss is recognized when transfer 1o an associate or joint venture involves a business as
defined in FFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not
constitse o business, however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
nssociate Or joint veniures.

The amendments are not applicable and have no significant impact 1o the Company.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The following explains the significant sccounting palicies which have been adopied in the preparation
of the financial statements. The accounting policies s2t out below have been applied consistemly 1o all
periods presented in these financial statements, except for the changes in accounting policies as
explained below,

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.

FEinaneial Instruments

Diate af Recognition

The Company recognizes a financial asset or financial liability in the statements of financial position
when it becomes a party io the coniractual provisions of a financial instrument. In the case of a regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using

settlement date accounting.

Titial Riecogmition and Measirement

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair valoe, which is the fair value of the consideration
given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability), The initial measurement of financial
instruments, excepl for those designated at fair valee through profit and loss (FVPL), includes
iransaciion cost.

I.-Ew_p J"I d-lﬂi-l"ﬂ.l'ﬂ

Where ihe iransaction in 8 pon-active market is different from the fair value of other observable cument
market transnctions in the same instrument or based on A valuation technique whose variables include
only datn from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction
price and fair value (a “Day 1™ difference) in profit or koss,

In cases where there s no observable data on inception, the Company deems the transaction price as
the best estimate of fair value and recognizes *Day 1™ difference in profit or loss when the inputs
becomse observable or when the instrument is derecognired, For each iransaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1" difference.
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Classifization

The Company classifies its financinl nssets a1 initial recognition under the following categories: a)
financial assets at FVPL; b) financial assets ot amortized cost and c) financial assets st fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCH). Financial liabilities, on the ather hand, are classified
as cither financial labilities it FVPL or financial Habilities a1 amortized ¢ost. The classification of &
financial instrument largely depends on the Company's busmess model and s contractual cash flow
charncteristics,

Financial Assets and Liabilities @l FYPL
Financial assets and liabilities mt FVPL are either classified as held for trading or designated s FVPL.
A financial instrument is classified as held for tading if it mests either of the following conditions:

* it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

* on imitial recognition, it is part of & portfolic of idenfified financial instraments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent sctual pattern of shont-term profit-taking: or

» it is o derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or n designated and
effective hedging instrument).

This category includes equity instruments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify o
FVOCT at initial recognition. This category includes debt instraments whose cash flows are not “solely
for payment of principal and imterest” assessed af initial recognition of the assets, or which are not held
within a business model whose objective is gither 10 collect contraciual cash flows, or 1o both collect
contractual cash flows and sell.

The Company may, ot initial recognition, designate a financial asset or financial linbility meeting the
criteria to be classified at amortized cost or at FYOCT, as a financial asset or financial liability at FYPL,
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces accounting mismatch that would arise from measuring
these assets or labilities,

After initial recognition, financial assets at FVPL and held for trading financial linbilities are
subsequently measured of fair value, Unrealized gains or losses anising from the fair valuation of
financial assets at FVPL and held for trading financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss.

For financial Habitities dexignated ai FVPL under the fair walue option, the amount of change in fair
value that is atribuiable o changes in the credit risk of that lishility is recognized in other
vomprehensive inoome (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an sccounting mismatch
Amounis presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVPL are quoted securities beld for trading by the Company.

Firricial Assetx af Amortized Cost
Financlal assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
# the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold financial assets in
order o collect contractual cash flows; and
» the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, 10 cash Nows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial recognition, financial assets ol amorized cost are subsequently measure ol amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, ifany. Amortized cost is caloulated
by taking info account any discount of premium on asquiziton and fees that are an integral pan of the
effective interest mte, Gains and logses are recognized in profit or loss when the financial asseis are
derecognized and through amortization process. Financial assets s amonized cost are included under
current asseds if realizability or collectability is within 12 months afier the reporting pericd, Oterwise,
these are classified as noncurrent assets,
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As &t December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company's cash, receivables from customers and receivables
from clearing house are included under this category.

Financial Assers ar FVFOCH
For debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow chamcteristic and are not designated at FVPL
under the fair value option, the financial assets shall be measured at FVOCI if both of the following

conditions are met:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order 10 collect contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, 10 cash Nlows that arc
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For equity instruments, the Company may imevocably designate the financial asset to be measured at
FVOCT in case the above conditions are not met,

Financial assets at FVOC] are initially measured st fair value plus transaction costs. After initial
recognition, interest income (calculated using the effective interest rate method), curency gains or
losses and impairment losses of debt instruments measured at FYOCT are recogaized directly in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized
in OCI are reclassified from equity to profit or Joss as a reclassification adjustment,

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCI are recognized in profit or loss when the right to
réceive payment is established, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Foreign currency gains or losses and unrealized gains or losses from equity
instruments are recognized in OCI and presented in the equity section of the statements of financial
position. These fair value changes are recognized in equity and are not reclassified 1o profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

As al December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company designated its unguoted investments in equity
securities carried af falr value as financinl sssets at FVOCT ag disclosed in Mote 9.

Financigl Linbilitier af Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities a1 amortized cost when the substance of a
contractual arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or ancther
financial asset to the holder or 1o settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for & fxed number of its own equity instruments,

These financial lishilities ore initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. After initinl recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured & amortized cost
using effective interest method, Amonized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on the issue and fees that are an Integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or koss when the liabilities are derecognized or through the amonization
ProcEss.

As ot December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company's liabilities arising from its trade payables to
customers and brokers, payable to others and accrued expense and other current lisbilities excluding
governmend liabilitics, are included under this category (See Motes 14,15 and 16)

Reciaeifeation

The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business model for
managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification date).
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For a financial asset reclassified out of the financinl assets at amortized cost category 1o financial assets
at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of the
financial asset and fair valwe is recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial assets
at FVOCL, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amontized cost of the
financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCI.

For o fimancial asset reclassified out of the financinl assets at FVPL cacgory to financial assets at
amortized cost, its fuir value ot the reclassification date becomes its new gross camrying amoun.

For a financial asset reclassified cut of the financial assets sl FVOCH category 1o financial nssets at
amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI, and any difference between the new
amortized cost and maturity amount, are amortized 1o profit or boss over the remaining life of the
investment using the ffective interest method. IF the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any gain
or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

In the case of o financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be recognized
in profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is subsequently
impaired, any previous gain of loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss,

For a financial nsset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at
FVOC, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. Meanwhile,
for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FYOC] category to financial assets at
FYPL, the cumulative gain or koss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the reclassification date.

.Fn_lpm'nrlrn.t qulMHi‘M Assels

Expected evedit loxy methodology

ECL represent credit Josses that reflect an unbiased and probability-weighted amount which is
determined by evaluating & range of possible owicomes, the time value of money and reascnable and

supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future econcmic
conditions. ECL allowances will be measured at amounts equal 1o either:

s |2-month ECL
% lifetime ECL for those financial instraments which have experienced a significant increase in
eredit risk since initial recognition,
The 12-momth ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default events on a financial

instrument that are possible within the twelve (12) months after the reponting date. Lifctime ECL are
credit losses that results from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial asset.

Sigging asvessmend
For non-credit-impaired financial instruments:

Stage | is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced a SICR since
initial recognition. The Company recognizes a 12-month ECL for Stage 1 financial assets.

Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial nssets which have experienced a SICR since initial
recognition. The Company recognizes a lifetime ECL for Stage 2 financial assets.
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For eredii-impaired financial instraments:
Financial instruments are classified as Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of inspairmendt.

Write-aff Policy
A financial nsset is written ofT when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cashflows,

Definition of “defeult”

The Company classifies receivables, or any financial assct as in default when it is credit impaired or
becomes past due on its contractual payments for more than 90 days, As pari of a qualitative
assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company considers a varicty of instances that may
indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events oceur, the Company carefully considers whether the

event should result in treating the customer as defaulted.

Significant increase [n credlit risk (51CR)

The credit risk of a paricular exposure i deemed w0 have increased significanily since imitial
recognition if, based on the Company’s aging information, the borrower becomes past due for over 30
days. Further, the Company assumes that the credit risk of o financial asset, particularly on cash and
equivalents and receivables from customers, clearing house ond non-customers, hos not increased
significanily since origination if the financial aseet ks determined to have “low credit risk™ as of the
reporting date. A financial asset is considered “low credit risk™ when it has an external rating
equivalent to "high grade”.

In subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument improves such that there is
no longer & significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company shall revert fo
recognizing m 12-momth ECL.

Impairment of Financial Assets ai Amortized Cost and FVOCT

The Company records an allowance for “expected credit loss™ (ECL). ECL is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects 1o receive. The difference is then discounted at an spproximation to the asset’s
original effective interest mie.

For irade receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on the lifetime expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

Derecogrirton af Financial Assets and Liabiliies

Flrsancial Assets
A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of o group of similar financial
assels) is derecognized when:

# the right to receive cash flows firom the asset has expired;

» the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
AFTAMEEMENT; oF

» the Company has wansferned s right to recelve cash fiows from the financial asset and either (a)
has transferred subsiantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (k) has peither iransferred nor
retmined substantinlly all the risks and rewasds of the asset, but has transferred controd of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has entered
into a pass-through arangement, and has neither transferred nor resained substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial asset, the financial
asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the financial asset
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantes over the transferred financial asset is
measured at the kower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to pay.

Sole Payment of Principal Interest (58P0
The company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets 1o identify whether it meets the SPPI

fest,

Principal for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset ot initinl
recogrition and may change aver the life of the financial assets (for example, if there are repayments of
principal or amortization of the premivm/discount),

The most significant elements of interest within lending arrangements arc typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applics
judgment and consider relevant factor such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated,
q;ud.dipptdndﬁ:r“hmhlhcuinmm:muﬁ

In Contrast, contracieal terms that infroduce a more than de minims exposwre (o risks or volatility in
the contractual cash Pows that are unrelated 1o o basic do pol give rise to contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. [n such cases, the financial asset is
required o be measared at FYPL.

Financial Assct Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPP] and the business
model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial
nssets are mannged together to achieve a paricular business ohjective. This mssessment includes
Judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and
their performance measared, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.

Financial Liabilittes

A financial liabilliy ks derecopnized when the obligation ander the lability is discharged, cancelled or
has expired. When an existing financial lisbility is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
mew liability, and the difference in the respectivie carrying amounis is recognized in the statements af
comprebensive income,

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is different
by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original lisbility.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original liability and fair
value of the new Hability i3 recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not

extinguished but merely modified. In such case. the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or fiees
paid or received in the restrsciuring.
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Ofseiting of Fimancial Assers and Lighilines

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of
financial position if, and only if, there is a cumently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is indention to setile on a net basis, or to realize the assel and settle the Lability
simulianeously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets
and liabilities ane presenied gross in the statements of financial position.

Clazrification of Financial Instrument betwesn Liahilite and Equiny
A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

s Deliver cash or ancther financial asset (o another entity;

» Exchange financial assets or financial Habilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavornble to the Company; or

» Smisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial asset
to settle iis contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of & financial liability,

Decivative Fi fol Inat { Hodgi

Freestanding Derivasives. For the purpose of hedge accounting. hedges are classified as either:

a) fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or
liability or an unrecognized firm commitment (excepl for foreign currency risk]);

b) cash flow hedges when hedging exposure o variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognized asset or linbility, a highly probable forecast ransaction
or the foreign carrency risk in an unrecognized firm commitment; o

¢l hedges of a net invesiment in foreign operations.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
refationship to which the Company wishes 1o apply hedge accounting and the risk management
ohbjective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instruments, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the
entity will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the
hedged item's fair value or cash flows artributable 1w the hedged risk.  Such hedges are expecied fo be
highly effective in achicving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an
ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial
reperting periods for which they were designated.

Fair Value Hedge. Derivatives classified as fair value hedges are carried at fair valuz with
corresponding change in fair value recognized in the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The camrying amount of the hedged asset or lisbility is also adjusted for
changes in fair value attributable to the hedged em and the gain or loss associated with that
remeasurement is also necognized in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the hedge ceases to be highly effective, hedge accounting is discontinued and the adjustment to
the earrying amount of a hedged financial instrument is amortized immediately.

The Company discontimses fair valee hedge accounting if:
) the hedging instrument expires, is sold, is terminated or is exercised;
bithe hedge no bonger meets the criteria for hedge accounting, or
chthe Company revokes the designation,

The Company has no derivatives accounted for as a fair valse hedge as at December 31, 2021 and
2020,
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Cash Flow Hedge, Changes in the fair value of a hedging instrament that qualifies as a highly effective
cash fow hedge ane recognized in other comprehensive income presemted in ihe separate sistements of
changes in equity, The ineffective portion s immedistely recognized in the statements of profit o boss
and other comprehensive income,

1 the hedged cash Now results in the recognition of an nsset or a Hability, all gains or losses previously
recognized direcily in the separate stalements of changes in squity are transferred and incloded im the
imitial measurement of the cosl or carrying amount of the asset or liability, Otherwise, for all other cash
flow bedges, gains or losses initinlly recognized in the separate statements of changes in equily are
tranafierred 1o the statements of profit or losa and other comprehensive income in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecasted transaction or recognized asset or Hability affects the
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

When the hedged ceases 1o be highly effective, hedge sccounting is discontinued prospectively. The
cumulative gain or lass on the hedging instrument that has been reported direcily in the separate
staterments of changes in equity is retained until the forecasted transaction occurs, When the forecasted
transaction is no bonger expected to occur, any net cumulative gain or loss previously reported in the
separate statements of changes in equity is recognized in the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Company has no outstanding derivatives accounted for as a cash flow hedge as at December 31,
2021 and 2020,

Net Imvestment Hedge. Hedges of a net investiment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a
monetary item that is sccounted for as part of the net investment, are accounted for in a way similar o
cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the
hedge are recognized in other comprehensive income while any gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognized in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. On disposal
of & forsign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains and losses recorded in the separate
statements of changes in equity is transferred to and recognized in the statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income,

The Company has no hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation as at December 31, 2021 and
2020,

Changes in fair values of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognized directly in
the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Embedded Derivarives. The Company asscsses whether embedded derivatives are required 10 be
separated from the host contracts when the Company becomes a party 1o the contract. An embedded
derivative is separsted from the host contract and accounted for as derivative if all of the following
conditions are met;

a) ihe economic chamcteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related 1o the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contrmet;

b} & separaie instrament with the some terms as the embedded denvative would meet the definition of
& derivative: and

¢} the hybrid or combined instrumenit is not recognized s FYPL.

Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifics the
cash flows that would otherwise be required,

Emhedded derivatives that are bifurcated from the host contracts are accounted for either as financial
nssets or financial liabilites at FYPL,

The Company has no derivatives as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
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Intangible Assel

Trading rights

Intangible asset is initially recorded at cost. It has indefinite useful life and is tested for impairment
anmaally at the cash generating-unit level. Such intangible asset is not amortized. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life
nssessment continues to be supportable. 17 not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to definite is made on a prospective basis,

Subsequently, trading rights arc measured at cost less any sccumulated amortization and amy
accumulated impairment ksses.

A gain or loss arsing from derecogwition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the siatement of
other comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

Eroperty and Equipment
Property and cquipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment
loss, il any.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impon duties and
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the ais#1 10 its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged w0 expense in the period the costs are incurred,
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures bave resulted in an increase in
the future economic beneflts expected 1o be obtained from the use of an item of property and
equipmient beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as
an additional cost of property and equipment.

Depreciation is computed on a straighs-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Transporation equipment 3- 5 years
Furniture and fxtures 3- 4 vears
CxTice equipment 3- 4 years
Computer sofiware and equipment 2- 5 years

Estimated useful life is the period over which an asset is expected 1o be available for use by an entity.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorer of their estimmed useful life or the
comesponding lease term,

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to cnsure that the periods and
method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of

property and equipment.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the casrying value may mot be recoverable, 1f any such indication exists and
where the camrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment boss is recognized
in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
a2 the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or bosa in the vear the asset is derecognized,
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Tmipaateamend af Nonfimaacial Asrels
Property and equipment and trading rights are reviewsd for impairment when events or changes in
circumsiances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

If any such indication exisis and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverabls amount,
the nssets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts.

The estimated recoverable amount is the greater of an asset’s fair value and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated fubuere cash Mows sre discounted to their present value using o pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset, For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. [mpairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss in the statements of comprehensive income.

Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when that there is an indication that
the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The reversal is
recorded in the statements of comprehensive income. However, the increased carrying amount of an
msset due to reversal of an impairment boss is recognized 1o the extent that it does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years.

Derecognition of Nenfinancial Assets

An iem of the property, furniture and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of the assets (compuwied as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statements of comprehensive income in the year the
mssets is derecognized,

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. This includes common stocks only.

Retnined Earnings

Uinapproprianed retatmed earnings
Unappropriated retained carnings represent cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, dividead
contributions, effect of changes in sccounting policy and other capital adjustments.

Appropriated retained eornings
Appropriated retained eamings represent appropriation for reserve fund in compliance with Revised
SRC Code Mo. 49.1 (B

Hevenue and Cosl Hecognition Lan Il kLI

Revenue i ized at an amount that reflects the considerntion to which an entify expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services 1o a customer., The standard requires the
Company 1o exercise judgment, taking imo consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model 1o contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the
sccounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a
contract. The PFRS 15 establishes a five-step model 10 account for revenue anising from contracts with
CUSLomers,

The five-step meodel is a3 follows:
e |deniify ihe comtraci({s) with a customer
»  ldentify the performance obligations in the comtract
o Delermine the transaction price
#  Alloeate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract
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»  Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the contract
has been satisfied, cither al & poist in time or over time. Revenue is recognized over time if one of the
following eriteria is met:

+  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as the Company perform its
obligations;

& The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the xssel is
created or enhanced; or

# The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and
the Company has an enforceable right 1o payment for performance completed 1o date. Otherwise,
pevenue is recognized at a point in time,

The following specific criterin must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Camimilssiong
The Company’s main revenue is derived from commission income on irade execution service
recognized at a point in time whien control of the service has transferred 1o the castomer.

Trunsfer of control of the trade execution performance obligation generally occurs on the trade date
because that is when the underlying financial instrument is identified and the pricing is agreed upon.
On the trade dnte, the customer has obtained control of the service because it can direct the use of, and
obtnin substantially all of the remaining benefits from, the asset that comes from the trade execution
service.

Commission income is derived from variable amounts which are 0.23% to 0.30% of the gross trade
amount and therefore the amount of revenue 1o be earned from esch contract is determined by reference
1o each of those trade transactions.

Trade transactions are usually settled 3-days after the trade date (T+3 settlement rule).

Inrerest fncome
Imterest income s recognized as the interest accrues using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend fcome
Dividend income is recognized when the Company®s right to receive the payment is established.

Crain on sale of fimancial asseis ar FVPL
Gain on sale of financial nssets ot FVPL iz recognized when realized.

Cither Income
Oher income includes handling fee of the customers” stock certificates and is recognized when canmed.

Cost and operating expenses are recognized when it is probable that a decrease in future economic
benefil related to a decrease in am asset or an increase in linbility has oocurred and the decrease in
fiture economic benefits can be measured reliably. Expenses encompass losses as well as those
expenses that arise in the course of the ordinary activities of the Company. Expenses are recognized as
incurred.

The Company uses single statement of comprehensive income, in which it presents all items of income
and expense recognized in the period.
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Leases

Lessee Accounting

PFRS 16 iroduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee 1o recognize assets and
linbilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
A lessee is required to recognize & right-of-use psset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset ond o lease lability representing its obligation to make lease paymients.

Recognition

A lJessec measures right-of-use assets similarly w other nonfinancial assets (such as property and
equipment) and lease liabilities similarly 1o other financial liabilities. As a consequence, a lessee
recognizes depreciation of the right-of-use asset and inberest on the lease linbility, and nlso classifies
cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and presents them
in the stdement of cach (ows applying (PAS T) Statement of Cash Flows.

Imitial hfeasurement

Short-term feases and leases of low-value assets

The Company apply the shor-term lease recognition exemption 10 our short-term lenses (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement dote and do nof contain
purchase option). The Company alio apply the lease of low-value nssets recognition exemption to
leases that are considered of bow value. Leass payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-value
nssets are recognized as expense on a siraight-line basis over the lease term.

Significant judgmaent in defermining the lease term of comtracts with renewal aptions

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with amy
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasopably ceriain to0 be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is rensonably certain not to be exercised. The
Company has the aption, under some of its leases to lease the nssets for additional terms of three to five
years. The Company applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain o exercise the
option 10 renew. That is, it considers all relevam factors that create &n economic incentive for it to
gxercise the renewal. Afler the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise
(or oot 10 exercise) the option o renew (e.g., 8 change in business strategy)

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today®™s accounting under PAS 17,
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in PAS 17 and
distinguiih between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

Leases previously accounted for as opemating lesses.

The Company recognized right-of-use asscts and lease labilities for those leases previously classified
a3 operating leases, except for shorm-term leases and beases of ‘low-value” assets. The right-of-use
assets were recognized based on the carrying amount as if the standard had always been applied, apart
from the use of incremental borrowing rates af the date of initial application. Lease liabilities were
recognized based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate a1 the date of initial application,

The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein the Company:

o Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12
months ot the date of initial application;

o Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
applicaticn;

*  Lsed hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contnins opfions to extend or
terminate the lease; and

s Elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components end aceounted them as single
lease component.
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Accounting policies for leases applicable before January 1, 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or comains n lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the armngement is dependent on
the use of o specific asset or asscts and the armangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only ifone of the following applies:

{n) there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the armangement; or

(b & renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or extension was
initially included in the lease term; or

{c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or
{d}) there is a substantial change to the assel,

Where o reassessment s made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise o the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c), or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b),

The Company as Lexior

Amounis due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the
Company”s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated io accounting periads so &6
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment outstanding in

respect of the leases,

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the werm of the relevam
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and armanging an operating lease are added w the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on o straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as Lestee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expenss on o straight-line basis over the leass term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed, Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. In the event that lease incentives are
received o enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as o liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on o straight-line basis, exoept
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time partern in which economic benefits
from the lensed asset are consumed.

Emplovee Benefits
&  Retirement Cost

The Company does not have an established refirement plan and only conforms to the minimum
regulatory benefit under the Retirement Pay Law (Republic Act No, 7641) which is of the defined
benefil type and provides a retirement benefit equal to 22.5 days pay for every year of credited service.
The regulatery benefit i3 paid in a lump sum upon retirement.

The amended PAS 19R) simplifies the reporting of the defined benefit cost by introducing the MNet
Interest Approach, which disaggregates the defined benefit cost into the following components:
Service cost, Met interest and Remensurements,

Under the Met Interest Approach, Service Cost and Met Interest on the defined benefis Hability (msset)
are both recognized in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income, while remensurements
of the defined benefit liability (asset) are recopnized outside profit or loss in other comprehensive
imcoems (CC1)L
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It i further required by Amended FAS 19 (R} that remeasurements recognized in OCI shall not be
reclassified 1o profit or boss in @ subsequent peril. However, the Company may transfer those
amounts recognized in OCH within equity,

The refirement cost of the Company is determined by applying the Acerued Benefit Actuanial Cost
Method taking inte account the factors of investment, mortality, disability and salary projection rate.

Service codts which include current service costs and past service cosis are recognized as expense in
profit or loss and is calculated periodically by independent qualified actuary.

Interest on the retirement liability is the change during the period in the retirement liability that arises
from the passage of time which is determined by applying the discount rate based on povermment
bonds to the retirement liability,

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gning and |osses are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit

or loss in subsequent periods.,
b, Shori-term benefits

The Company recognizes a linbility net of amount already paid and an expente for services rendersd by
emplovees during the accounting period. Short term benefits given by the Company to iis employees
include salaries and wages, short ferm compensated absenmces, 555, Pag-ibig and Philhealth
gortributions, and 13%* month pay.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

The Company determines its own funciional currency and items included in the financial statement of
each entity are mensured wsing that functional currency, Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded in the functional currency rate ruling ot the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslkated 1 the fumetional currency rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date, Exchange gains or losses arising from foreign exchange transactions are
credited 1o or charged against operations for the period.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

+  Exchange differences on foreign curmency bormowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment fo interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; and

+  Exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and liabilities where the gains and losses
of such non-monetary items are recognized direcily in equity.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense for the period comprises of current income tax only,

Current fex

Current tax asset and liability are measured at the amount expected to be recoversd from or paid to
taxcation authoritics. The fax rates used o compute are those that are enacted or substantively enacled
it the Anancial position date, and any sdjustment o tax payable in respect of previous years,

Incomes tax expense is recognized in the sttements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
excepd to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized

in gy,

Deferred rax
Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amousts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not
aceounted for if it arises from initial recopnition of an asset or liability in o iranssction other than a
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business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit o
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
subssantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected 1o apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is setiled.

Dieferred tax nssets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforeand of unused tax
credits from excess minimum corporate income tnx (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT)
and unused net operating loss earryover (NOLICO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporry differences and carmyforwand of unused iax
credits from excess MCIT over RCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and lisbilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current (ax assels against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate 1o income taxes levied by the same taxation suthority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an infention (o seitle ihe balances on o net basis,

Currens and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive incoms,
except when they relate 1o items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively,

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized in the net amount of VAT, except:

# Where the VAT incurred on & purchase of assels or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the VAT is recogmized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item applicable; and

» Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

Income (Loss) per Share
Basic income {loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for any subsequent stock dividends declared.

Diluted ks per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares owtstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shanss
outstanding that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.,

Related party relationship exists when (a) o person or a close member of that person’s family has
contral or joial control, has significant influence or is @ member of the key management personnel of
the reporting entity or a parent of the reporting entity. (b) An entity is related 1o the Company if, the
entity and the Company are members of the same group, one entity is an associste or joint venture of
the other entity, both entities are joint ventures of the same third party, one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an asscciate of the third party, an entity is & post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of the Company, the entity is controlled or joint controlled by a
person who has control or joint control over the Company and a person as identified in (a) above has
significant influence over the entity is a member of the key management personnel of the entity or of a
parent of the entity. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationships, and not merely 1o the legal form.

A related party transaction is o transfer of resources, services or obligations between related pariies,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
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Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead 1o an outflow of economic
resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still be
uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has
resulied from past events,

Provisicns are measured ot the estimated expenditure required to settle the present abligation, based on
the most reliable evidence available at the financial position date, including the risks and uncertainties
associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected 1o be received in the course of
settlement of the present obligation is recognized, if virisally certain as a separate assel. not exceeding
the amount of the related provision. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole, In addition, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values, where time value of
money i% material.

Provisions are reviewed at each financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present obligations is
considered probable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no
lizhility is recognized in the financial statements.

Probable inflows of cconomic benefits that do ol yet mest the recognition criteria of an assel arc
considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial statements.

Prior period adjustments are omissions from, and misstatements in, an entity's financial statements for
one or more priof periods arising from a failure o use, of misuse of, reliable information that was
available and could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into aceount in prepaning
those statements. Such errors result from mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting
policies, oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud.

The Company corrects all material prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial
staternenis authorized for issue afler their discovery by:
= restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in which the error accurred; or
o if the error occurred before the earfiest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of
assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented.

If it is impracticable 1o determine the period-specific effects of an error on comparative information for
one or more prior periods presented, the entity must restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities,
and equity for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable (which may be the
current period).

Further, if it is impracticable to determing the cumulative effect, af the beginning of the current penod,
of an error on all prior periods, the entity must restate the comparative information o comect the emor
prospectively from the earliest date practicable,

Contingencies

Contingent linbilities represent possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company. They are mot recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed umbess the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A conlingent assel is nof recognized in the financial statemems ban disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Subsequent Events

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position &t balance sheet
date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting events are discloged in the notes to financial statements when material,
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Comparatives ) :
When necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the changes in the presentation
of the current year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the financial siatements in conformity with PFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
amounts reported in the financial statements. Actual resules could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statcments is ingluded in the following:

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company®s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the finsncial statements:

al  Classiffeaion of Functional Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Company, the
functional currency of the Company has been determined 1o be the Philippine peso. The Philippine
peso is the cumrency of the primary econemic environment in which the Company operates. Il &= the
currency that mainly influences the revenues and expenses of the Company.

b Classifcarion of Financial Instriremns

The Company classifles a financial instrument, or s component pars, on initial recognition a3 a
financial asset, a financial Kability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual agreement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification
in the statememt of financial position,

Evaluaiion of Business Model Applied in Managing Financial Instrionents

Upon adoption of PFRS 9, the Company developed business models which reflect how it manages
its partfolio of financial instruments. The Company’s business models peed not be assessed at eatity
level ar a5 & whole but shall be applied at the level of a portfolio of financial instruments (i.e., group
of financial instruments that are managed by the Company and not on an instrument-by-instrument
hasis (1.e., not based on intention or specific characteristics of individual financial instrument).

Deterniining Fair Value of Financial Insirme iy

When the fair value of financial instruments is required to be measured at fair value and the fair value
that canpot be derived from the active markets. The Company uses valuation techniques including the
discounted cash flow analysis and other relevant valuation models to determine the fair value of the
instrument. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affest the reported fair value of the instrument.

Estimates
The key assumptions concerning the future and other sources of esiimation uncertainty as af the date of

financial position that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the nex1 financial year are discussed below;
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a)  Extimating eredli losses on receivables

b)

The Company reviews its receivable from clearing house and customers on a periodic basis to
nssess their impairment at an individual level. In assessing for impairment, the Company
determines whether there Is any objective evidence indicating that there is a measurable decroase
ini the estimated future cash flows of its receivables,

Factors considersd in individual nssessment are payment history, past-due status and term. The
methodology and amsumptions used for individual assestment are baged on management’s
judgment and estimate.

The amount and timing of recognizing credit loss for any period would differ if the Company
made different assumptions or utilized different estimates. An increase in allowance for credit
hosses would decrease net profit and tolal assets.

As provided in the Revised Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 32.1, every broker dealer shall
establish appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and the basis for such computation of the
allowance shall be properly disclosed. The SEC or the PSE shall have the prerogative to deiermine
the reasomnableness of such receivable valuation taking into consideration the GAAF and indusiry

practices.

Impairment provisions for receivables from customers, brokers and others are recognized based on
the simplificd approach within PFRS 9 wsing the lifetime expected credit losses. During this
process the probability of the non-payment of the recelvables from customers, brokers and others
is sssessed. This probability is then multiplied by the amount of the expected loss arising from
default 1o determine the lifetime expected credit loss for the receivables from customers, brokers
and odhers. For receivables from cusiomers, brokers and others, which are reporied net, such
provisions are recorded in a separate provision account with the loss being recognized within cost
of sales in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. On confirmation that the trade
receivable will not be collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the
associated provision

Impairment provisions for receivables from related parties and loans o related parties are
recognized based on a forward-looking expected credit loss model. The methodology used to
determine the amount of the provision is based on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition of the financial asset. For those where the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition of the financial asset, twelve month cxpected credit
losses along with gross interest income are recognized. For those for which credit risk has
incrensed significantly, lifetime expected credit losses along with the gross interest income are
recognized. For those that are determined to be credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses
along with interest income on & net basis are recognized.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s receivable from customers and brokers are shown and
disclosed in Mote 4 and receivable from others are disclosed in Note 6.

The Company allowancs for credit losses on its receivables as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 was
shown in Note 4.

Estimated Usefil Lives (EUL) of Property and Equipment

The Company annually reviews the EUL of property and equipment based on the period over
which the assets are expecied o be available for wse and updstes i expectations differ from
previous estimates due 1o physical wear and tear, and technical or commercial cbsolescence, It is
possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned,

Page 51



HIDE SECURITIES, [NC
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, X121

(Wieh Comparative Figure for 2020)

el

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are disclosed in Note 29 which showed no
changes in 2021 and 2020,

The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in
these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and
equipment would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease non-curment Assels.

The carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation of the Company’s property amd equipment are
disclosed in Note 11,

Tmpairaent of Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses fmpairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, The factors that the Company
considers imporant which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

* significant underperformance relative 1o the expected historical or projected future operating
results;

* significant changes in the manner of use of the scquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

» significant negative industry or economic trends;

=  permanent decline in fair value of the asset;

®  market [nfersst Fates or other market rates of return on investments have increased duning the
period, and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating the assets
value in use and decreage the ssset's recoverable amount materially.

If any indicator exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairmem loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The EUL
and impairment are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. As of December 31, 2021, and
2020, none of these indicators exist on the Company™s property and equipment and irading rights.

Deferred Income Tax Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets as ai the date of
financial position and reduces deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income fax assets
to be utilized. The management assessment on the recognition of deferred income tax assets on
deductible temporary differences is based on the level and timing of forecasted taxable income of
the subsequent periods, This forecast is based om the Company's past results and fisture
expectations on revenues and expenses as well as future tax planning strategies. However, there i
no azsurance that the Company will generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

The Company reported deferned tax assets as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 as disclosed in
Mote 12.

Present Valwe of Retirement Benefit Obligation

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and the present value of the pension obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the furure. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary Increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due fo the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
dase.
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The valuation results are based on the employee data as of valustion dates as provided by the
Company. The discount mile msumption is based on the PDEx (FDST-R2) benchmark market
vields on government bonds as of the valuation dates (or latest available) considering the avernge
years of remaining working life of the employets as the estimated term of the benefit obligation.

Retirement obligations as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are disclosed in Mote 27,

3. FINANCIAL RISK AND CAFITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Finaneial risk management objectives and policies

The Company has documented financinl risk management policies. These policies sel out the
Company’s overall business sirategies and its risk management philosophy. The Company's overall
financial risk management program seeks o minimize potential adverse effects of finamcial
performance of the Company. The Board of Directors provides written principles for overall financial
risk management and written policies covering specific areas, such as market risk (including interest
rate risk, price risk), credit risk and Hquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews such wnitien policies
annually and periodic reviews are undertaken (o ensure that the Company®s policy guidelines are
complied with. The policics for managing spesific risks are summarized below.

Markes Risk

Market risk i the sk of loss to future eamings, fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
a5 a result of changes in its price, in furn caused by changes in interest rafes, equity prices. foreign
currency exchange rales and other market changes.

Interest Rave Rixk

[nterest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest roges will reduce the Company’s current
or fiure eamings and/or economic value. Company has no significant exposure to interest rate risk as
financial nssets (in the form of cash and loans and receivables) and liabilities are non-interest as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Forelgn currency risk

The Company undertakes certain transoctions denominated in foreign currencies, Hence, exposures o
exchange rate fluctuations arise with respect to tramsactions denominated in US Dollar. Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognized nsscts and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency. Significant fluctuation in the
exchange rates could significantly affect the Company’s financial position.

The Company's United States {US) dollar-denominated financial instruments pertains only to cash in
bank (savings account), translated into Philippine peso at the closing mics, amounting 1o 25,591 as of
December 31, 2021 and P 24,211 as of December 31, 2020,

The exchange rates wsed nmounted are P50.999 and P 48.023 as of December 31, 2021 and 2024,
respectively. The exchange rates used were generated from the Bankers Associntion of the Philippines
(BAP).

The following table demonsirates the sensitivify to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar rate,
with all variable held constant, of the Company's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets) and the Company™s exuity.

115 § Depreciates Li5 § Appreciates
2011 i 2021 Hzn
Effiect om profin before tix 5 502 5 S 5 (301) §  (504)
Effiect om equity m T8 (351 {153)
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Eguity Price ritk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease a8 a result of changes in the levels
of the equity indices and the value of individual stocks. The Company is exposed to price risk on s
equity securities classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). Senior
management is responsible for reviewing trading positions, exposures, profits and losses, and trading
sirufegies,

Investments in FYOCI are revalued on each reporting period end based on quoted market prices. Any
resulting fair value gains or losses arising from the revaluation of the availabbe-for-sale invesiments are
recognized directly in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Investments in
FVOCI that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any impairment losses at end of each reporting period.

The following table shows the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the Philippine Siock
Exchange index (PSEi) taking into consideration the adjusted risk measurement of ench individual
stock in the Company*s financial assets held for trading as of December 31:

2021 200
Change in PSEI A196% 1.71%
Change on irading ineome ol
eqquity peori fialio under:
Mining (LB SE) i4, 563
Hanls {152.964) 149,159
Chll 151081 (5500
Electriciny, Emergy, Fower & Water B4, 590 AFE G54
Cther Soevices bl B 18
Hoddang Firms 127,758} B0
Conilfuction, lafiaaraes sad Allisd Services (AT 404) 10,219
Propeny {20,280) 36,312
Ciher Fmancial Instio o 0,041 1,684
Preferred &, 1 -
Transporialion serviom {&,18T) 7047
Elecirical Components snd Eguipmeeni {dBIR) 13,384
Food, Bevernges and Tobacoo F 5% E] 254
Warranis (30 -
Cosing mnd Gaming - 149,778
Small, Mednes & Emerging - ET78
Eetml - T,0Z
Infermution Techaology - {5.506)
Media - I6E
Transportation services = *
Dielisted conspanes 14,217 C
= (55,5440 53,349

The assumed change in rate is based on the avernge change in the year-end PSEi for five {3) years.
Theee is o other impact on the Company's equity other than those already affecting profit or koss.

Credir risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting from
financial boss to the Company. The Company is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments,
for example by granting loans and receivables 1o customers, placing deposits and investments,
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Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the curying amount of the financial
assets a5 shown on the statement of financial position (or in the detailed analysis provided in the notes
1o the financial statements) as summarized bebow,

2021 2020
Cash r OSETIMAIGZ P 40275835
Firanckal assets at FYPL 1,735.570 6974066
Firancial assets at FYOCI 198,575 198,975
Receivables from:
Cussomers and brokers. 218,974,145 54,533,214
Others 1S99,158 173984

r ?Iﬁlﬂ' P 'I-l:l:'ll'i’ﬂa
*Excluding petiy cazh

The Company continuously monitors defaulls of customers and other counterparties, idemtified either
individually or by group, and incorporate this information imo its credit risk controls. The Company s
policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparies.

The table bebow shows the credit quality by class of investments at gross of allowance for credit losses
as of December 31, 2021:

Niether Past Dwe Nor Impaired Fast Due But
Class A Class B Ol Mol Impaired Tadal
Caih F SR G T . r . r - r 55,738,361
Financial asssts st FVPL 1,735,570 1,735.5T0
Fimancial asset at FYOCI 198,975 - - - 198975
Reseivables from;
Customers and brokers 28,974,145 - - 10,094,003 30,068,148
Otders L8918 - : : 1589158
P 2% P - F . P I P 101,300,213
*Excluiing pery cash

The table below shows the credit quality by class of investments at gross of allowance for credit losses
as of December 31, 2020:

Micther Past Due Nor Impaired Past Due But
Class A Class B Class ot Impaired Total

Cash F 0275815 F . P L P - p 40275 K35
Financinl ssets ol FYPL 6974068 6974 066
Fimancinl saet ol FYOC 198,975 . . - 198,975
Receivables from:

Customers and brokers B35 2014 . - 10108614 4,658,528

Chhers 1773984 - . . 1,773,084

[0 105614 P 113861088

Credit Quality - In monitoring and controlling credit extended to counterparty, the Company adopts &
comprehensive credit rating system based on financial and non-financial assessments of its bormowers.
Financial factors being considered comprised of the financial standing of the borrower while the non-
financial aspects include but not limited to the assessment of the borrower's nature of business, industry
background, payment habit and both present and potential business dealings with the Company.
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Class A “High Grade™ are accounts with strong financial capacity and business performance and with
the lowest defaul risk,

Class B “Moderate Girade™ refers to accounts of satisfactory financial capability and credit standing bui
with some elements of risk where certain measure of comrol is necessary in order to mitigate risk of
default,

Class C “Low Grade” refers 10 accounts which ane collecied on their due dates provided that the
Company made a persistent effort to collect them.

Past due but not impaired refers to uncollected accounts beyond due dates but are still collectible.

Cash
Cash in banks are deposibed in top ten barks in the Philippines, hence, considered high grade.

For the determination of credit risk, cash included in the analysis above do not include cash on hand
amsunting toP 50,000 for the year 2021 and 2020,

Bescivables
Receivables from customers and non-customers are secured (for fully and partially secured) by shares
of stock owned by the customers and non-customers but held by the Company.

In respect of receivables from cussomers, non-customers and others, the Company is not exposed to any
significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characieristics.

Fi ial VPl
Companies that are consistently profitable, have strong fundamentals and pays out dividends. As st
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s financial assets af FYFPL are classified as high grade
since these are with listed companied of good reputation.

Einancial assets sl FYVOC]
Unquoted AFS financial nssels are unrated.

Liquriciity Risk

Liguidity risk is generally defined &= the current and prospective risk to eamings or capital ansing from
the Company's inability to meet its obligations when they come due without recurring unacceptable
losses or costs,

In the management of liquidity, the Company monitors and maintains o level of cash deemed adequale
by the management o finance the Company's operations and mitignte the effects of fluctuation in cash
flowe,

The Company maintains cash and short-term investments to meet its liquidity requirements. Payables,
gccrued expenses and other current liabilities and customers and non-customers are expected to matune
within six months from statemnent of condiion date. Inberest bearing loan which is paidd in monthly
amortization will fully mature within one year from the statement of condition date.

The liability to customers andlor ¢learing house i3 matched by a comesponding receivable from

customers‘clearing house. Ligquidity risk would arise if all loans and receivables are not setiled in the
wsual T+3 settlement period.
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As @ December 31, 2021, the Company™s financial labilities have contractual malurities which are
presenbed below:

{'wrrent Mon-gwrreal
Wighin il 12 TS
& maoniha unlhi yean Tadal
Payable
Custameni r 39380376 . - ¥ 19,380,376
(Hbers 17,069,023 - . 17 065,610
Dy labelinics 2.3 10,60 - . PR
3 T = - T CTTH

As ot December 31, 2020, the Company’s financial linbilities have contractual maturities which are
presented below:

o Carreni MOE-CurTenl
Whthin fiio 12 linE
& monkhs mili hiz i Tatal
Payshie in
Custeemers r 49 808,140 49504, 14D

The above contractunl maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
values of the financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Capilal management

The primany objective of the Company’s capital management is 10 ensure that it maintains a strong
capital base 50 05 0 maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. The Board of Directors monitors the retum on copital, which the Company defines as net
operating income divided by total sharcholders® equity,

The Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) issued a memo 2000-03 16 regarding rules goveming trading
rights and trading participants. 1) Trading participants shall have @ minimum unimpaired paid-up
capital, as defined by the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) of Twenty Million Pesos
(P20,000,000) efMective December 31, 2004 Provided further, that effective December 31, 2010 and
onwards, the minimum wnimpaired paid-up capiial shall be Thiny Million Pesos (P30,000,000). Each
trading participant shall pledge its trading right 1o the extent of its full value 1o secure the payment of
all debts and claims due the clients of trading participant, the government, the Exchange and to the
other trading participants of the Exchange and to the Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines.
Such indebiedness io the Exchange, SCCP and other Trading Participants, shall always, and in every
case, be a priority, preferred lien upon the value, or the proceeds of sale of trading rights.

Mintaumr capiial mamagemend

The Securitbes and Exchange Commission (SEC) passed the Amended Implementing Rules and
Regulations of SEC that took effect on February 28, 2004 which provide among others, revisions in the
terms and conditions for registration and subsequent renewal of license applicable fo both exchange
trading participants and non-exchange broker dealers as follows:

8} To allow a net capital of P25 million or 2.5% Aggregate Indebtedness (Al), whichever is higher
for broker dealers dealing only in proprietary shares and mot holding securities;

b} To allow the SEC to set a different pet capital requirement for these authorized 1o use the Risk-
Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA) model;

¢} To require unimpaired paid-up capital of PI00.0 million for broker dealers, which are either first
time registrants or thise acquining existing broker dealer firms and will participate in o registered
clearing agency; 10.00 million plus & surety bond for existing broker dealers not engaged in
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market-making transactions; and P2.50 million for broker dealers dealing only in proprietary
shares and not holding securities,

The Company is required to comply with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16 on the Adoption of the
Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Requirement/®atio (RBCA) for Brokers Dealers. This rule was
published on Movember 13, 2004 by the Securities and Exchange Commission which took effect 15
days after its publication on Movember 29, 2004,

Under the pertinent provision of the Circular, it provides that every broker dealer shall ensure that its
RBCA Ratio is greater than or equal to 1:1; the Core Equity must always be greater than the
Operational Risk Requirement and that the broker dealer should maintain a Net Liquid Capital (NLC)
of at least Five Million Peses (P5, 000,000) or five percent (5% of the Aggregate Indebtedness [Al)
whichever is higher. Moreover, o broker dealer shall allow its aggregate indebtedness 1o all other
persons 1o exceed 2,000 percent of its NLC. If the minimum RBCA Ratio and NLC are breached,
every broker dealer shall immedintely cease doing business and shall notify the Securities and
Exchange Commission,

The RBCA Requirement/Ratio pertains 1o minimum level of capital that are required to be maintained
by licensed firms, considering the firm size, complexity and business risks such as operational risks,
position, counterparty, large expesure, underwriting and margin financing risks.

The Company is in complisnce with RECA ratio as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 as shawn below:

2021 2000
Equity eligible for net liquid capital P OS903,762 P 35122481
Less: Inchigible assets 17306,775 17,890,077
D B ol B P
Operational risk 7,797,180 B, 038,504
Pesition risk 588,190 242418
Counterpany rizk 1,201 .
Total Risk | Fequirement BI86571 10,451,112
Aggregate Indebtedness HJI11,169 41,929,695
% of Aggregate Indebtedness 1,715,558 2,006,485
Required Net Liquid Capital 5,000,004 3,000,000
Met Risk-Based Caplial Excess 6,596,987 10951404
Ratio of Aggregate [ndebtedness to Met Liguid Capital 196% H63%
Risk Based Capital Adeguncy Ratio 138% I152%
Ireligible asset
This pertains to fixed assets and assets which cannot be readily converted into cash.
Operational risk

It is the exposure that is associated with commencing and remaining in business arising separately from
exposures covered by other risk requirements. It is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and system which include, among others, risk of fraud, operational or
settlement failure and shortage of liquid resowrces, or from external evends.
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The Company™s operational risk requirement for 2021 is compuied as follows:

Type of Revenus 2010 019 2018 Average
Commission r JZ 015009 P63 425  MSI1IES T 31,203,153
In i Fest B4.325 70867 Ep 300 Te.1%0
Met recavery from market decline

marketable socnrd des ewmed 15,233 1365515 - T, AE}
videmd 1% 504 FATE ] 4B 0 148,867
Gaim an sale of marketahble
peourities BN G6RT - 1. 235,946 1,355,112
D) pher lmeome 6,058,301 g, L] £ L
T __SLI0eds)  9ENATI Jasniame ¥ JaSKssui
Averags of last 3 years gross income Iz 085801
Dpsrationsl cisk facior 2%
JRial speratisnal sk reguirement L

The Company”™s operational risk requirement for 2020 is computed as folkows:

Typeof Reveunt L Mg L Argugp
Cammiaion RME P HIES P 7401 P 32,000
Ingerest T T 56,300 2 E4E 51,000
el resovery from market decliog =

markrtable secdinlies o bl LI5S - 1 i, | 90 RIE, TS
IDvidend 1.9 48300 1n3z0 130,509
Gwin on sl of markeiakl _
ascErites - 1135546 410,943
1 [ r 1
Averape of last 3 yrar gres ingong 0,190,473
ik bl
Tl sl risk I I w
Pagition rizk

The risk o which a broker dealer i exposed to and arising from securities held by it as principal or in
itz proprietary or deaber sccount.

The Company’s position risk requirement for fixed income and equity securities as of December 31,
2021 is determined as follows:

Totnl Markei Position Risk

Valmt of the Fosition Risk Hequirernent

Type ol Sexuritbcs Equities Serarities Facions {Peso)
Equities in the FHIESLL 4 213,070 20 P 53268
ihiher equities outside the FIISIX 1.523 560 15 SILETS
FX Fositica 591 % 1047
Total positien risk roquiromest r_ LT6L16l 5% r 5B, 190
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The Company’s position risk requirement for fixed income and equity securities as of December 31,
2020 is determined as follows:

Total Marke: Position Risk
Waloe of the Feadtion Risk Raequirement
Tupe of Secaritien/Equities Securilies Facioes {Pesa)
Equities in the PHISIN r 4.4H 5% F 1 10%
CRher equities outiade the PHISIX 6,969,648 % LA
FX Position . 24,211 L] 137
Tasial positaosn riak regairemen F 6,598,277 £ | = 2442418

Coumterparty risk

Counterparty risk means the risk of a counterparty defaulting on its financial obligation fo a broker
dealer, Counterparty means any person or entity with or for whom a broker dealer carries on, or intends
to ey on, any dealings in secunities or another asset which could be either another executing broker

dealer or a client.

The Company's oounterparty risk requirement amoumnted to P1,201 and pil for 2021 and 2020,
respectively,

Large exposure risk
Large exposure risk means the risks io which a Broker Dealer i3 exposed whether by way oft

a, A proportionally large amount of exposure (o0& particular coumierparny;
b. A proportionally large exposure (0 a single issuer of debt;
G A proportionally large exposure to a single equity security or single issuer group;

Large exposure limit is the maximum permissible large exposure and calculated a5 a perceniage of core
equity.

Large exposune risk requirement means the amount necessary o sccommodite a given level of broker
dealer’s large exposure risk, which is in excess of the large exposure limil,

The Company did not have a large exposure risk for the years 2021 and 2020,

Aggregaie Indebiedmess

This is the total money liabilities of a broker dealer ariging in connection with any transaction
whatspever, and includes, among other things, money borrowed, money pavable against securities
loaned and securities that the broker deaber failed o receive, the market value of securities borrowed to
the extent 1w which mo equivalemt value i paid or credited (other than the market value of margin
securithes bormowed rom non customers), customers and non-customers” free credit balamces, and
credit balances in customers® and pon-customers” account having shont positions in securities, bual
subject to certain exclusions.

The capital structure of the Company consisis of equity attribwtable to eguity holders comprizing
ixsned capifal, reserves and refained earmirgs,

There were no changes in the Company s approach to capital management during the period.

The Company's regulated operations have complied with all externally imposed capital requirements,
4% of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
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Wity Comyarative Figure for 2060)

Stgeificani Rivks to which the Retivemeni Obligation Exposes the Company

There are no unusual or slgniflcant risks to which the Retirement Obligation exposes the Company,
However, it should be noted that in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement obligation, the
benefit shall immediately be duwe and payable from the Company,

Asser-liability matching strategies io manage risks
The Company does not have a formal retirement plan and therefore has no plan sssets to match against
the liabilities under the post employment benefits.

3L CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following methods and assumptions were wsed 1o estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Financial Insirnments Whese Carrylng Amouni Approximate Fair Falue

The carrying amounts of cash, unquoted equity securities, receivable from customers, payable to
customers, payable 1o non-customers which are all subject to normal trade credit terms and are
short-term in nature, approximate their fair values,

Fimancial Assets at FVPL

The Company's financial assets at FVPL and quoted equity securities are carried at their fair
values as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, Fair value of financial assets at FVPL is based on
the closing quoted prices of stock investments published by the PSE.

The following table presents the Company's assets and linbilities that are measured at fair value
il December 31, 2021,

idr value mensuremend us

Quoted pricesin~ Significant Significart o
active markets  observable inputs  wnobservable inputs .
{Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Assels:
Firancial assets 2t FWPL

Equities in the PHISTX P 213070 . T

Equities ouside the PHISIX 1,522,500 5 . 1,522,500
¥ 1733570 P - o

There are no financial instruments carried ai fair value under Level 2 and 3 during the year,

Page &f



HIM SECURITIES, INC
AUDITED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

{'Wigh Comparative Figure for 2020)

The following table presents the Company's assets and linbilities that are measured at fair value
at December 31, 2020,

Qonipins Sgitont  Siban
aclive markets observable imputs  wmobservable inputs
(Level 1} (Level 2) {Level 3)
ASRELE:
Financial assets at FYPL
Equities in the PHISIX r 4420 - - F 4,420
Equities outside the PHISIX 6,969 644 . - 6,969,546

F 6914066 P . - P 6974066

There are no financial instruments carried at fair value under Level 2 and 3 during the vear,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Company’s financial statements in a recurring basis,
the Company determinas whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) ot the end of each reporting period. There were no trangfers thal ooenrned
Benween level 1, fevel 2 and level 3 diring the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and
nonrecurring fair valee measurements.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics und risks of the asset or lisbility and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained abowe,
Categaries of Financial Instrienenis

The Company's financial assets and linbilities are in Level 2 and the carrying values and fair valuees of
thee fimancial assets and liabilitics per category are & follows;

P = 2020
Carrying Carrying
AMaounl Fair Value Amcunt Fair Valug
{In Thousssdi)
Asseis
Cash F ERTIE P EATEE P 40175 P 40,275
Finsscial sxvet w1 FYWOC] 1% 173 9% |
Recervables from:
Cusiomers and brckers IRAT4 IN9T4 34,533 #4533
Cmhiers 1,855 1,559 1,77 i, 75
[ FE S HiATH P T 781 F [TRIT]
_— —_— e mmmnoen
Liabiliss
Payahles
Cuxiomers and brokers r Fmjsm P LRI 49806 P L L]
Oihiers 17 065 1T DED 11,000 11,0482
Accrued expease and other
cureni lisbilties 1211 111 1809 jase
r LU L8 GG 704 P b-l.?l-l-
———— T
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As at December 31, 2021 and 2024, financial asset at FVPL amounting to ® 1,735,570 and 6,974,066
categorized under level | {quoted prices in active markets).

Trading rights is valued based on the latest selling prize of membership stock exchange seat, as
provided by the PSE amounts to P5.500 million categorized under lewvel 2 (significant observable
inputs),

33. SUMMARY OF NON-CASH TRANSACTION ARISING FROM INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The Company hkas no non-cash transactions arising from investing and finzncing activities i 2021 and
2020,

3. OTHER MATTERS

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic

The COVID=19 pandemic has severely impacted the economy as businesses are forced 10 cease or
minimize operations. Measures taken by the govemment to contain the spread of the virus include
quarantines, socinl distancing, and closune of non-cssential services, smong others,

In essence, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, our business operations dropped by about 50% for rading
hours have been reduced by the Philippine Stock Exchange. The Company”s outside services of Human
Resource and Information Technology were terminated, salary of employess was cut down, and the
Management stopped hiring for the replacement of the resigned employvees 1o reduce the Company's

operating expenses,

The Company plans to transfer to a smaller working place to reduce the office remal expenses since the
direction of the Company is to continue 1o let s emplovees to work from home. Sixty percent (60%%) of
the employees are allowed o work from home for their protection and safety,

The Company provided shuitle services, fsce mask, vitaming and other sanitation kits 1o protect the
employees who needed 1o report 1o office everyday which resulted to additional expenses,

35 SUFFLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER REVENUE REGULATIONS 19-
2001 AND 15-20010

Reverrue Regulation N, [5-2000

On Movember 25, 2010, the Bureau of Internal Revenuse (BIR) issued Revenue Regulation [(RE) Mo,
1520010 which took effect on December 29, 2010 which provides for additional information required
0 be disclosed in the notes o financial statements regarding xes, dutics and license fee, paid or
sccrued, during the taxable year. Specifically, the disclosure should include the following: (a) amount
of Value-Added Tax (VAT) output taxes declared during the year with sccount title and amount’s; (b)
amount of VAT Input taxes claimed; (¢} landed cost of imports and the amount of customs duties and
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tarifT fees: (d) amount of excise taxes, classified per major product category; (&) documentary stamp tax
(D5T) on Ioan instruments and other transactions; () all other taxes, local and national, license and
permit fees kodged under taxes and licenses account both under the Cost of sales and operating expense
nccounts; (g amount of withholding taxes;(h) periods covered and amounts of deficiency assessments;
and (i) tax cases and amounts ivolved.

In complinnce with RR Mo, 15-2010, the following taxes are either paid or accrued by the Company for
the taxabbe year ended December 31, 2021:

The following table shows the Company’s Sales and VAT output declared as of December 31,
2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Commission Income o 18,559,664 P 32,118,009
VAT caitpt A 160 1E34,161
2. The amount VAT Input taxes claimed are broken down as follows:
ford] 2000
Beginning of the year r . =
Current year's purchases
I, Goods other than for resale or manufachare 12,853 1538
IL. Capstal goods subject to amartization . 19,148
[Il. Services lodged under other secounts 309,134 200259
IV. Others 211,860 334,384
511540 319
Application against outpul VAT _ 513,040 570,319
Balunce af the end of the year ¥ - P -

3.

Landed Cost, Customs” Duties and Toariff Fees

The Company did not have any imporiations in 2021 and 2020 that would require for the payment
of customs duties and tariff fees.

Excise Tax
The Company did not have any transsctions in 2021 and 2020 which are subject to eocise tax,

Dipcumentary Stnmp Tax

The Company paid documentary stamp fax amounting to P7,162 and P 12,404 in 2021 and 2020,
respectively.
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§'With Comparative Figure for 2020)

&, Other Taxes and Licenses

p{ | 2020
Local
Mayor's permit P 276501 P 263833
Crbver local faxes 3895 116,984
Mntional
BIR Annual Begistration S0 500
Total H60,596 381,337
Sales tax paid 31,373,343 31562404
Perceniage tax J16460.931 31,903,599
F 63395170 P 63.!-‘1"740
7. The amount of withholding taxes paid'sccrued for the yesr amounted fo:
2021 202
. Tax on compensation and benefits F 04785 P T13.852
Il. Expanded withholding tax 1,492,628 1,749,687
P 13 * 2,463,539

B. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Company did mot have any final deficiency tax
assessments from the BIR nor does it have tax cases outstanding or pending in courts or bodles

outside of the BIR in any of the open years,

9, (hher information

All ather information prescribed 1o be disclosed by the BIR has been included in this note,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN LIABILITIES SUBORDINATED
TO CLAIMS OF GENERAL CREDITORS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Mo liabilitics are deemed subordinated to general creditors
for the period andited

Selredule §
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.
RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Kchedule If

DECEMBER 31, 2021

Assets T 124,604 B55
Liabilities 62,067,048
Equity 62,537,807
Adjustments to equity
Audd (Dedact):

Unrealized gain (boss) in available fior sale investments =

Deferred tax asset (32,085 .675)

Remeasurement gain (1,548,370)
Total adjustments 1o equity (33,634.045)
Equity eligible for Net Liquid Capital 28,903,762
Less: Ingligible Assets

Froperty and equipment, et 208,356

Intangible assets 8,500,000

Curmrent iax assels 5,853,537

Financial asset at FVOCI 198,975

Prepayments and other current assets 490,107

Other assets 2,055,800
Total Incligible Assets 17,306,775
NET LIQUID CAPITAL (NLC) F 11,596,987

— — — . ]

Lizgs:

Operational Risk Requirement 7,797,180

Position Risk Requirement 5BB. 190

Counterparty Risk Requirement 1,201
Total Risk Capital Requirement 8,186,571
Met Risk Capital Adequacy Requirement 3.210416
Liabilities 62,067,048
Less: Exclusions from Aggregate Indebtedness (27,755,879
AGGREGATE INDEBTEDNESS F 34.310,169
5% of Aggregate Indebtedness 1,715,558
REQUIRED NET LIQUID CAPITAL 5,000,040
NET RISK-BASED CAPITAL EXCESS P 6,596,987

—— ——

RATIO OF AGGREGATE INDEBTEDNESS TO NLC 196%
RISK BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO 138%
L — ——— -}
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.

INFORMATION RELATING TO THE POSSESSION OR CONTROL
REQUIREMENTS UNDER REVISED SRC RULE 49.2-1
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Customers’ fully paid securities and excess margin securities not in the broker's or dealer’s possession or
control as of the report date but for which the required action was not taken by respondent within the time
frame specified under Revised SRC Rule 49.2-1:

Market Valusion M A

Mumber of items N/A
Customer's fully paid securities and excess margin securities for which instructions to reduce to possession
ar control had not been issued as part of the report date, excluding items arising from “temporary lags
which result from normal business operation” as permitted under Revised SRC Rule 49.2-1:

Market Valuation MiA

Mumber of fems MNiA

Schedule T
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.

COMPUTATION FOR DETERMINATION OF RESERVE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER ANMNEX G OF REVISED SRC RULE 49.2

DECEMBER 31, 2021

CREDITS

DEBIT

Free credit balances and other credit peso balance
in cutomers'security nccounts,

Customer's securities failed 1o receive
Diebit balances in customer's cash or margin accounts

excluding unsecured accounts and accounts doubtful
of collection,

P 35697133

3463418

-

34,287,561

EXCESS OF CREDITS OVER DEBITS

4,872,990

REQUIRED TO BE ON DEFOSIT IN THE
"RESERVE BANK ACCOUNT"
(100 of net credit if making a weekly computation
and 105% if monthly)

4,872,900

Special Reserve bank Acoount

Schedule IV

B27TH.RIR
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.

A REPORT DESCRIBING ANY MATERIAL INADEQUACIES FOUND TO EXIST OR
FOUND TO HAVE EXISTED SINCE THE DATE OF THE PREVIOUS AUDIT
DECEMBER 31, 2021

The Management of HDI SECURITIES, INC. maintains a system of accounting and reporting for the
necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are
safeguarded against unawthorized use of disposition and linbilities are recognized.

In this regard, no inadequacies were foand 1o exist or found 1o have existed since the date of the previous
audit.
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.

RESULTS OF QUARTERLY SECURITIES COUNT
CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO REVISED SRC RULE 52.1-10
DECEMBER 21, 2011

There is no discrepancy in the resulis of the securities count conducted.
See attached summary

Schedule I
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HDI SECURITIES, INC.

SCHEDULE VIlI

SCHEDULE SHOWING FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
IN TWO COMPARATIVE PERIODS
UNDER SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2021
Performance Formuls 2021 2020
Indientors
Current Ratio Current Assets 109,311,928
Current Linbilities 58,660,003 1 &6 1.81
Ackd Test F .
Ratio Cash & cash equivalents + Reczivables 102,968,284 s s
Current liabilitics 58,660,093 ; :
Debt 1o Equity
Ratlo Total Lisbilities 62,067,048 0.9 101
Stockholders” equity 62,537,807 ;
Assets to
Equity Ratio Total Assets 124,604 855 1.99 201
Stockholders’ Equity 62,537,807 i '
Solvency
Ratio Income afier tax+ Depreciation (5,092,088) (0.08) | 0.000
Total labilities- deferred tax liabilitics 62,067,048 : '
Operating
Margin Loss before income tax (2,254,340) 8% | 6.19%
Revenues 28,559,664
RBeturn on
Equity Met Income (50877711 15 | 64%
Stockholders' Equity 62,537,807
Return on
Aszels Met Incoime (5,097,771} 410 4%
Total assets 124,604,855
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1228 Makali Cly, Phillppinos
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Wisbaile mamarTacio oom

SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT OF AUDITORS

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
HD1 Secarities, Inc.

Unit 2305A, The Orient Square Building
Francisco Ortigas Ir. Road, Ortigas Center
San Antonio, Pasig City

We have sudited the financial statemenss of HDI Securities, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2021, on
which we have rendered the amached report dated April 12, 2022.

In compliance with Revised Securities Regulation Code 68, we are stating that the Company has a total
number of two (2) stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares ench,

M.A. MERCADO & CO.

MARCELING A. MERCADO

Partner

CPA Licenso Mo, DGEEES

Tax ldemification Mo, 102-921-222

PT.E Mo, 8864974; Issued on January 14, 2022, Makati City
SEC Acoreditation Mo, 66885550 (Group B)

Bsued on January 25, J0XT;

Valid until 2025 financial stavements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accrediation Mo, (B-003338-002-2021

lssised on December 9, 2021; Valid until December &, 20324

1C Apereditation Mo, TA629-IC (Group A}

Issued January 26,2021

valid umil 2024 financial statements of IC covered institution
Firm®s BOAPRC Cent. of Reg. Mo, 5658

Issued on September 18, 2020; Valid uniil Sepember 17, 2023
Finm's SEC Accreditation Me. 5658-5EC (Group B)

fesued cn Janunry 25, 202L

Valid unt] 2025 finaneial statements of SEC covered insgtinutions
Firm's BIR Accreditztion Mo, 08-006173-000-2021

[zsoed on Manch 4, 2021; Valid untl March 3, 2034

Firm's IC Accreditation No_ 5638-1C {(Growp A)

lssued o January 26, 2021;

wvalid until 2024 Mnancinl statements of 1C covered instiuions

April 12,2022



